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          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: This joint

          3  hearing of the General Welfare Committee and the

          4  Committee on Women's Issues is called to order.

          5                 I'd like to first of all commend our

          6  Sergeant-At-Arms for providing bilingual

          7  instruction. We appreciate that. And I want to

          8  welcome my colleagues. The Co-Chair of this hearing,

          9  Helen Sears, will be with us momentarily, and

         10  Council Member Annabel Palma, who is on the General

         11  Welfare Committee, is shuttling between this

         12  Committee and Land Use next door, so we'll see her

         13  soon. I want to welcome Council Member Gale Brewer,

         14  who is on General Welfare, and Council Member Tish

         15  James on Women's Issues Committee.

         16                 And I want to thank all of our staff

         17  from both Committees who have helped to put this

         18  hearing together, especially Baaba Halm, am I saying

         19  it right?

         20                 MS. HALM: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The Counsel to

         22  the Women's Issues Committee. And Jackie Sherman,

         23  the Counsel to the General Welfare Committee.

         24                 And Tish James is noting they're

         25  women. Thank you, Tish. A grasp of the obvious is
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          2  very striking.

          3                 We're here today, because as I think

          4  a lot of people know in this room, these two

          5  committees over the last four years, and I will note

          6  Women's Issues previously chaired by Council Member

          7  Tracy Boyland, over the last four years these

          8  committees I think put more time into the child care

          9  issue probably than any other issue facing our City,

         10  and our feeling is that just as over the years thank

         11  God education has become a front page issue, has

         12  become something that has been fully understood as

         13  the most important thing we can do for the future of

         14  our nation and our City and to serve the children

         15  who we say are the most important citizens of our

         16  community, that just as education is that important,

         17  and over the last decade or more it became a

         18  front-burner issue, where many times it was not in

         19  the past, child care has to have the same journey.

         20  Child care has to be seen as just as crucial as the

         21  education children get from the time they get into

         22  pre-k and go on from there, because child care has

         23  everything to do with the health and safety of

         24  children, and has everything to do with preparing

         25  them for a positive school experience, it also has
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          2  everything to do with the ability of families,

          3  particularly low-income families, to be

          4  self-sufficient, because in an era in which it is

          5  harder and harder for people to make ends meet, we

          6  have more and more people in poverty, more and more

          7  people who do not have health insurance, et cetera,

          8  and more and more good jobs depend on high levels of

          9  education, it is absolutely unfair to say to people

         10  become self-sufficient, but somehow care for your

         11  children simultaneously without any type of support.

         12                 And, so, over these last four years,

         13  we have struggled to increase the amount of child

         14  care available in our communities, and I want to say

         15  that the City Council has been very successful, in

         16  both pushing the Administration to add additional

         17  child care slots, and in funding a number of slots

         18  directly through the City Council's own budget

         19  efforts, but in addition to adding to the total,

         20  we've worked very hard to improve the quality and to

         21  provide greater support to the people who do the

         22  work.

         23                 Again, I think anyone in this room

         24  who has worked with education would agree on this

         25  parallel, for years and years not only were teachers
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          2  not appreciated, administrators not appreciated, but

          3  they were under attack and they were claimed to be

          4  part of the problem.

          5                 Well, I think with child care

          6  workers, these are folks on the front line doing the

          7  work serving our children, I wouldn't say they've

          8  been under attack, but I can sure say they've been

          9  under-appreciated, and not respected.

         10                 I would sure say that you don't hear

         11  the accolades. We should. We absolutely should

         12  praise our cops and our firemen, absolutely, but we

         13  should be praising our child care workers just as

         14  much, because they do the work every day.

         15                 And, so, the purpose of the hearing

         16  today is to really look at what are we doing to

         17  support the people who do this work, particularly in

         18  the informal sector of this work, what are we doing

         19  to ensure that as many people as possible who want

         20  to do this work are able to?

         21                 What are we doing to make sure that

         22  as many families as possible who need quality, safe

         23  child care can get it?

         24                 Are we making sure that our supply of

         25  child care is constantly growing? Because we know
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          2  the demand is greater than ever, and we certainly

          3  know there is a huge amount of unmet demand.

          4                 Now, the backdrop is rather

          5  troubling. For years and years this Committee has

          6  pointed out that a lot of state and federal funding

          7  that we believe was earmarked to increase the supply

          8  of child car has not gone to that purpose. We've

          9  seen in Albany constant efforts to undercut funding

         10  for child care, although I think in the last few

         11  days we may have gotten some good news on that

         12  front, and I'm sure the Deputy Commissioner will

         13  speak to that in a moment.

         14                 I will editorialize and say that a

         15  number of us feel that the Administration's

         16  Out-Of-School Time plan has been a net loss in terms

         17  of child care, and it undermines some of the

         18  progress that was being made in terms of child care.

         19                 So, there's a lot of backdrop here

         20  that leads us to be concerned, that not only are we

         21  not increasing the supply, in a lot of ways we're

         22  slowly losing our ability to serve families in need,

         23  and that's why the informal providers are so

         24  crucial, because that's where in many cases that's

         25  the only opportunity, the only choice a lot of
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          2  families have, and that's why it's so important

          3  today to look at what are we doing to support those

          4  providers and to facilitate families' abilities to

          5  get that child care.

          6                 Now, I want to say, even though I'm

          7  expressing some critique and concern, I do want to

          8  say I think in many ways Administration for

          9  Children's Services, which will be testifying in a

         10  moment, has done a lot to focus and put more energy

         11  into child care than has been put previously to play

         12  their role in improving the supply of child care,

         13  and certainly to work with us in terms of improving

         14  the quality of child care, and I appreciate that

         15  very, very much.

         16                 And I also want to say, I believe we

         17  have a representative of the Department of Mental

         18  Health -- Health and Mental Hygiene, right? Someone

         19  help me. Health and Mental Hygiene, thank you. That

         20  Department has changed names I think once every six

         21  months over the last few years, but I want to say

         22  that also we've worked with that agency, in terms of

         23  a number of issues related to inspections and health

         24  and safety standards for child care, and I do think

         25  they've taken that work very seriously, and also
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          2  made significant progress, and I want to thank them

          3  for that.

          4                 Now, again, today we want to look at

          5  the subsidized child care for well over 30,000

          6  children who receive child care through informal

          7  providers, and in particular the Human Resources

          8  Administration's work to administer that program.

          9                 All of this is in the context of

         10  making sure we have that supply of child care we're

         11  looking for and making sure that providers and

         12  families know how to navigate the system properly,

         13  are getting the support they need.

         14                 If people don't know how to navigate

         15  a system, they don't work in the system. It's that

         16  simple. If a parent can't figure out how to access

         17  child care, they won't get that child care. That

         18  will be bad for that child, bad for the parent, bad

         19  for the parent's ability to be self-sufficient

         20  economically and find the kind of career path they

         21  need.

         22                 If the provider cannot get the

         23  payments they deserve on a timely basis, and can't

         24  make sense of the bureaucracy, it's a disincentive

         25  for that provider to continue doing the work.
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          2                 If that provider goes and does some

          3  other kind of work, we have, again, lost an

          4  opportunity to provide quality child care to a

          5  family. It's that simple.

          6                 And I want to remind everyone that

          7  the theory governing a lot of this, and it's in

          8  federal and State law, is that the quality of the

          9  child care provided is supposed to be equal, whether

         10  you're going to a private program with no subsidy

         11  and you're buying child care on the open market, or

         12  whether you're going to a program that the public

         13  sector subsidizes, you're supposed to get the same

         14  quality level either way.

         15                 But that can only work if the people

         16  providing the care are getting the support they

         17  need. It's an absolute fallacy and joke to say we're

         18  going to have equal levels of care, equal levels of

         19  service, if on the one hand providers in the private

         20  sector are getting all of the support in the world,

         21  and providers who get public subsidy are not. You're

         22  not going to get equal service that way.

         23                 Now, to finish up here, October, a

         24  few months ago, the New York State ended up

         25  revising, based on a Statewide survey, revising its
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          2  market rates and are coming up with new rates which

          3  raise the maximum reimbursement rate for many forms

          4  of child care.

          5                 So, we want to, in particular today,

          6  with our experts from the Administration, understand

          7  how providers have been informed of these rates, how

          8  they've been able to access these payments of the

          9  new level, and when there are questions or problems

         10  or conflicts, how those are resolved to make sure

         11  that people are getting paid what they deserve.

         12                 Again, I know our co-chair Helen

         13  Sears will be here in just a few minutes. I also

         14  want to welcome, we've been joined by a couple of

         15  other Council members. I welcomed Annabel

         16  previously. She is back now.

         17                 I want to welcome Melissa Mark

         18  Viverito. Are you on Women's Issues?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK VIVERITO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: On the Women's

         21  Issues Committee. And I'd like to welcome Jessica

         22  Lappin, who is on the General Welfare Committee.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me state

         24  the obvious, we're all women.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'd like to
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          2  inform you that they're all women. I'm feeling a

          3  little surrounded at this moment.

          4                 I learned a long time ago to do

          5  whatever women told me to do and everything would

          6  work out okay.

          7                 And with that, we will turn to our

          8  first panel. We have representatives of several

          9  agencies. Now, I don't know now who is actually

         10  going to testify first.

         11                 Deputy Commissioner Chaudry of ACS

         12  will testify first. And again, wait, just before you

         13  do, I'd like to welcome, we pre-welcomed you, but we

         14  will re-welcome you, Council Member Helen Sears,

         15  Chair of the Committee on Women's Issues.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Sorry I'm late. We had such a traffic

         19  jam that it took an hour and a half just to get

         20  here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Welcome.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And you've

         24  added to women majority here on the panel.

         25                 Okay, Deputy Commissioner Chaudry.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Good

          3  morning, Chair DeBlasio, Chair Sears and members of

          4  the General Welfare and Women's Issues Committee. I

          5  am Ajay Chaudry, the Deputy Commissioner of the

          6  Administration for Children's Services for the

          7  Division of Child Care and Head Start.

          8                 With me is Susan Nuccio, Deputy

          9  Commissioner for Financial Services, and Kay Hendon,

         10  our Assistant Commissioner for Child Care Services,

         11  who I will note are both women.

         12                 I would like to take this opportunity

         13  to brief the Committee on our progress today in

         14  implementing rethinking child care, an integrated

         15  plan for early childhood development in New York

         16  City, and in particular on our efforts to implement

         17  community-based enrollment services for child care

         18  services.

         19                 I also would like to thank all the

         20  women who are in the audience, many of whom are

         21  child care providers and provide one of the most

         22  meaningful services to our City that we could ask.

         23                 And while we're at it, I might as

         24  well tell you that the other two people at the table

         25  are Seth Diamond from HRA and Frank Rochielo
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          2  (phonetic) from the Department of Health and Mental

          3  Hygiene.

          4                 As the Council is aware, Children's

          5  Services released a strategic plan for the

          6  integration of early childhood development services

          7  in the City this fall.

          8                 The plan identified several goals: to

          9  better serve young children and families with high

         10  quality early childhood developmental services.

         11                 These included full utilization,

         12  making sure that our programs operated at full

         13  enrollment, and we move towards a model that allowed

         14  for a strategic combination of contracted care and

         15  vouchers to achieve full enrollment and operate with

         16  our limited child care funds most efficiently.

         17                 To streamline eligibility and

         18  enrollment, to transition from a centralized

         19  determination of eligibility to one in which parents

         20  could enroll their children at the neighborhood

         21  level, and directly of programs to access services

         22  sooner and to make sure that care is more

         23  continuous;

         24                 - To provide continuous quality

         25  improvement;
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          2                 - To improve and monitor the quality

          3  of care of services by establishing a unified set of

          4  qualified services across all the domains.

          5                 As you said, the care for children

          6  should be of high quality wherever that care is

          7  provided and to whomever it is provided, whether

          8  they be subsidized or not; and

          9                 - To develop a performance

         10  measurement tool to evaluate all publicly-funded

         11  contracted care, so that parents would also be able

         12  to at some point access this information to know

         13  when they're selecting care, how that care is rated.

         14                 We want to raise standards and

         15  quality for all providers, in center-based and

         16  home-based care settings.

         17                 And for the latter, we want to work

         18  with networks for greater oversight of home-based

         19  care, and to develop career ladders for informal

         20  care providers. These are elements of our plan.

         21                 Finally, another major goal of the

         22  plan is integration.

         23                 We want to build a seemless system of

         24  early care in education, coordinating with the

         25  Department of Education's pre-kindergarten programs,
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          2  the Human Resources Administration's child care

          3  programs, and our own head start and child care

          4  systems.

          5                 HRA and ACS are working together to

          6  bring HRA's child care programs into ACS in order to

          7  increase the continuity of care for children as

          8  their family's needs change; and as the child's

          9  developmental needs evolve.

         10                 HRA and ACS are engaged in a

         11  comprehensive planning process to do this, that we

         12  are in the midst of, and it's not yet completed.

         13                 Since announcing the plan, Children's

         14  Services has launched a full enrollment initiative.

         15  This initiative lays out the expectation that

         16  fully-funded programs will meet the terms of their

         17  contracts and operate at 100 percent enrollment, or

         18  that ACS will reallocate any unused capacity to

         19  address the needs of underserved communities in

         20  children of younger ages, a major focus of the plan.

         21                 At the core of this effort to

         22  increase enrollment is the implementation of

         23  community-based enrollment. The families would be

         24  able to receive services in the community without

         25  having to go to a centralized place.
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          2                 Traditionally parents would have to

          3  show up in a Children's Services resource area and

          4  hope to be seen, or to call 3-1-1 and be connected

          5  to a central office to then get an appointment.

          6  These appointments could take weeks or months, and

          7  it would require working parents to take time off to

          8  attend these interviews.

          9                 Often they miss days of work and

         10  school for parents and their older children. As well

         11  as add delay in the need to secure child care

         12  quickly.

         13                 As you mentioned, child care for

         14  low-income families is deeply connected to work, and

         15  families need work arrangements pretty much on the

         16  spot, and having to wait months for an appointment

         17  for child care doesn't sort of serve that need.

         18                 Community-based enrollment

         19  streamlines the application process and enables

         20  parents to apply directly via nearby community-based

         21  programs, which then in turn enroll the children

         22  into their programs.

         23                 This approach eases the logistical

         24  barriers to accessing service for parents and links

         25  families to the child care settings of their choice,
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          2  and the most appropriate service for their children

          3  located in their neighborhood.

          4                 By connecting parents and providers

          5  with up-to-date program information, this approach

          6  supports parents in making informed choices about

          7  care for their children, while also doing a better

          8  job of matching family needs and program services.

          9  Thereby, we hope reducing the number of care

         10  transitions children experience in their early

         11  lives.

         12                 Research has demonstrated the

         13  importance of stabilizing child care providers, on

         14  the cognitive and the social and the emotional

         15  development of children.

         16                 This research, however, also shows

         17  that too few children benefit from such stable care.

         18                 In fact, children and families who

         19  receive subsidized child care on average can

         20  experience upward of a dozen moves by the time a

         21  child is five years old.

         22                 Our efforts to support effective

         23  child care matches at enrollment and coordinate care

         24  across all public child care systems in this City,

         25  therefore, hold the potential to yield a significant
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          2  reduction in the number of transitions children

          3  experience and result in better early childhood

          4  development outcomes.

          5                 Let me tell you a little about how we

          6  got started.

          7                 Our first initiative was an

          8  initiative in the Bronx for both, to move forward

          9  with both program-based enrollment and reaching full

         10  enrollment.

         11                 Our pilot began in the winter. It

         12  began with programs who were willing to try and

         13  adopt this new enrollment model.

         14                 For the pilot, 65 of the 77 fully

         15  funded Bronx child care centers chose to do their

         16  own eligibility determination and enrollment.

         17                 We are providing, we will continue to

         18  provide, we will always provide intensive help to

         19  these agencies that choose to reach out to families

         20  directly and enroll them into their programs, and to

         21  prioritize the applications that come from this

         22  process in the enrollment process.

         23                 During the two months in which this

         24  pilot has been underway thus far, the number of

         25  fully-enrolled programs in the Bronx has more than
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          2  doubled, and more than 300 additional children are

          3  being served before it started.

          4                 The enrollment rate for the Bronx

          5  Child Care Programs has increased by more than seven

          6  percent in less than three months from baseline, and

          7  represents the highest percentage increase of any of

          8  the five boroughs.

          9                 Now the average rate of utilization

         10  for fully-funded programs in the Bronx is at 95

         11  percent, and the majority of providers are above 95

         12  percent.

         13                 Finally, the number of providers with

         14  very low enrollment in our system we call below 85

         15  percent has decreased precipitously from 35 percent,

         16  a third of all centers in December, to nine percent

         17  today, less than a tenth, all centers.

         18                 I should also point out one of the

         19  major innovations we did as part of this simplified

         20  eligibility system is to develop a much simpler

         21  program-friendly, parent-friendly application.

         22  There's a one-page application now to apply for

         23  early childhood services, and as the Mayor announced

         24  in the fall, we will be moving towards having a

         25  common application form for all early childhood
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          2  services in the system that at some point we hope to

          3  be available on line, on the web, everywhere and

          4  anywhere that parents might seek child care.

          5                 Increasing enrollment. As part of our

          6  effort to boost enrollment in the Bronx, Children's

          7  Services is working intensively with the programs

          8  with the lowest enrollment.

          9                 To support these programs in their

         10  efforts to boost program utilization, Children's

         11  Services has assembled a team by Kay Hendon to

         12  provide these technical assistance providers.

         13                 We also brought in a former assistant

         14  commissioner for child care as a consultant to work

         15  closely with the 22 lowest-performing agencies to

         16  make sure that we give them every possibility to get

         17  to full enrollment by the time frame we gave them.

         18                 This technical assistance team is

         19  looking at the business practices in these agencies

         20  to identify opportunities for integrating

         21  eligibility determination into the normal course of

         22  their business, to serve families holistically in

         23  one place and at the community level.

         24                 We have worked with our local borough

         25  child care offices to ensure that they are primed to
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          2  accommodate new applications for child care from

          3  these programs, and that these applications are

          4  reviewed first.

          5                 Our efforts to increase enrollment

          6  and achieve full utilization are also underway in

          7  our Head Start program. Our push to increase

          8  enrollment in Head Start began earlier this fall,

          9  and as a result, our Head Start agencies are at 99.6

         10  percent enrolled today, with more children being

         11  served by Head Start in New York City than at any

         12  time in the City's history. And this is in a context

         13  we must point out where the funding for Head Start

         14  has become so tightly constrained. As funding for

         15  Head Start has been flatlined for year after year,

         16  and we're doing more with less, we are literally,

         17  literally doing more with less, serving over 20,000

         18  children in Head Start for the first time.

         19                 This push has been critical as we

         20  work to prepare for the upcoming federal review of

         21  Head Start known as the PRISM.

         22                 We expect this triennial review to be

         23  this summer, and we have begun working very closely

         24  with our providers to prepare for this, to convey

         25  our program's successes effectively.
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          2                 We also plan to learn through this

          3  monitoring how our programs can grow and more fully

          4  meet the performance standards for Head Start in the

          5  future.

          6                 Expanding care for young children.

          7  This is at the center of our plan. In our analysis,

          8  we found that the care to children under three was

          9  greatly disproportionately less than the care to

         10  children over three.

         11                 We have invited all of our program

         12  contractors to describe to us how they would need to

         13  change the staffing to make facility changes to

         14  start by taking in more two-year-olds.

         15                 We have gotten many creative

         16  responses, including a lot of interest in extending

         17  this service in their communities.

         18                 The final deadline for these

         19  responses is April 28th.

         20                 We believe the targeting expansion to

         21  serve younger children will help providers achieve

         22  full enrollment and allow the City to make the best

         23  use of existing resources.

         24                 As you know, the recent State budget

         25  included an increase for universal pre-kindergarten.

                                                            25

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  Division here is that as pre-kindergarten gets

          3  greater and we age down education to serve more

          4  four-year-olds, we age down the early childhood

          5  resources to serve more of the younger kids who are

          6  currently not served.

          7                 Finally, we will continue to build a

          8  unified system of standards for the City's early

          9  childhood education programs.

         10                 To do this, we have recently entered

         11  into a contract with a team of experts from across

         12  the country in the early education field, who will

         13  be leading this effort.

         14                 Let me talk briefly about informal

         15  child care. The City has been working with the

         16  State's Office of Children and Family Services over

         17  the past several years to prepare for the

         18  implementation of a new set of State regulations for

         19  informal child care providers.

         20                 Under these regulations, Children's

         21  Services will work with a community-based agency

         22  that will enroll informal providers.

         23                 As you know, Chairman, Commissioner

         24  Mattingly came before this panel last year, March

         25  15th, about a year ago, and said he wanted to move
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          2  out ahead of these standards because of how

          3  important it was for child safety.

          4                 And in anticipation of these new

          5  regulations, Children's Services has begun a pilot

          6  program to provide background checks for informal

          7  child care providers utilized by Manhattan families.

          8  The pilot was launched in two phases: Children's

          9  Services launched the first phase in November when

         10  we began utilizing public databases, such as the New

         11  York State inmate population and the National Sex

         12  Offender Databases to give background checks on

         13  providers in all other household members.

         14                 On February 1st, Children's Services

         15  received clearance from OCFS to utilize additional

         16  standards in conducting these searches, including

         17  child welfare databases.

         18                 Background checks now include all of

         19  the following: A look of the child care facility

         20  system, a look of criminal history record checks, a

         21  look of multiple sex offender registries and a look

         22  at child welfare databases.

         23                 In addition to the database checks

         24  discussed above, Children's Services has also begun

         25  conducting site visits for new provider applications
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          2  as part of the second phase of the pilot.

          3                 Beginning in February, we initiate a

          4  site visit requirement for ten percent of new

          5  informal child care providers. These on-site visits

          6  verify provider identity, household members and

          7  information provided in the health and safety

          8  attestation. This pilot is scheduled to conclude in

          9  the summer, and after a brief period of analysis,

         10  the State regulations for informal providers will be

         11  implemented across the City.

         12                 I should also point out, the City, in

         13  this effort, has been mutually developed and shared

         14  with HRA, and we're doing this pilot together.

         15                 This City is also currently working

         16  with the State to design an RFP for the enrollment

         17  agencies that under the new regulations would

         18  operate this function across the City.

         19                 So, in conclusion, we would like to

         20  thank the Council for this important and sustained

         21  support for child care in New York City.

         22                 I do agree with you that this is a

         23  great fresh turn that the City has taken, both the

         24  Administration and the Council, to provide new and

         25  renewed attention to child care.
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          2                 With the Council's leadership,

          3  Children's Services has been able to leverage an

          4  addition $19 million for child care in New York City

          5  this fiscal year, and we thank you for that, and it

          6  helps us work towards the goals of our strategic

          7  plan.

          8                 In the coming months, we plan

          9  continued progress in achieving enrollment, the

         10  creation of the uniformed standards, the long-range

         11  plan for families.

         12                 Let me also take the time to also

         13  thank you, Chairman DeBlasio and members of the

         14  Committee, your staff, the Committee staff, for

         15  making early childhood development a critical issue

         16  on this City's agenda, that it really must be, as

         17  you pointed out. And also to thank this room full of

         18  people who, many of whom are providers to care of

         19  children. They are the ones who prepare our City's

         20  young for their future, and they're the one who

         21  shape our City's future.

         22                 We are happy to take any questions,

         23  and look forward to update you on our progress.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         25  much, Commissioner.
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          2                 I also want to say on behalf of all

          3  of the Council members here, we are very, very

          4  appreciative that so many people have come here

          5  today to witness this and to, you know, be a part of

          6  this, because we know you know better than anyone

          7  what it takes to provide this service to the

          8  children who need it. So, I want to thank everyone

          9  here, and please give yourselves a round of

         10  applause. We are very happy to have you with us.

         11                 Now, my understanding for our

         12  colleagues from the other agencies, does anyone else

         13  have prepared testimony? Okay, so it's all going to

         14  be Q and A. All right, let's do some Q and A. I have

         15  a few questions to begin, and I know my fellow chair

         16  has questions as well as some of our colleagues. So,

         17  let me begin with a few points, and I think since

         18  the administering of the payments and the support

         19  for the informal sector is largely through HRA, I'm

         20  going to direct my initial questions to Deputy

         21  Commissioner Diamond of HRA, who has been a frequent

         22  guest on the show, welcome back. You may be our

         23  all-time leader in terms of number of appearances

         24  before the General Welfare Committee. We commend you

         25  for that.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: It's not

          3  the title anybody wants.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's true.

          5                 I'm not going to take that as an

          6  insult.

          7                 Again, we are very concerned to

          8  understand what the effects have been of the new

          9  market rate for these informal providers, and

         10  crucially how it's being implemented and how it's

         11  being made real for people. So why don't you start

         12  out by giving us a sense of the process by which the

         13  providers are receiving this new rate or what they

         14  have to do to qualify for this new rate?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay.

         16  Let me just, I think it might be helpful to put it

         17  in context, to back up a minute, and just say what

         18  might be clear to you, but just to make sure we have

         19  a common frame of understanding.

         20                 HRA's child care is focused on

         21  providing child care to people who are working, or

         22  who are participating in employment activities and

         23  who are on public assistance.

         24                 We also have a component of people

         25  who are transitioning off public assistance, but
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          2  once they've been off for a period of time, we move

          3  them over to the Administration for Children's

          4  Services.

          5                 Our child care is focused on

          6  supporting parents in work and employment activities

          7  and in fact it's tied to their continued

          8  participation in either work or employment

          9  activities. Parents who are not participating in one

         10  or the other are not entitled to child care through

         11  the Human Resources Administration.

         12                 We pay child care that the parent

         13  selects, and we pay up to the State market rate that

         14  you referenced.

         15                 In the past years, when the State has

         16  increased the market rate, we have not done any

         17  notification to child care providers. Child care

         18  providers learned about it among themselves, and as

         19  they increase their rates or had higher costs, they

         20  came in and parents were allowed to fill out a

         21  lengthy form, come into job centers, file that form,

         22  we evaluated it, and if it was appropriate put the

         23  new market rate in place.

         24                 This go-round we took a different

         25  approach, one that we thought would be easier for
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          2  parents and providers.

          3                 First of all, we sent out a

          4  notification to all parents and all providers of the

          5  new market rate, letting them know that the rate had

          6  increased, what the market rate was, and what some

          7  of the options they had now that the market rate had

          8  gone up.

          9                 Secondly, instead of requiring people

         10  to fill out a new child care provider form, which is

         11  a multi-page document, we developed a one-page form

         12  that a parent and provider could fill out together

         13  and submit to the agency.

         14                 Even before that, however, it was

         15  important to note that any provider who had told us

         16  previously that their rate, the rate that they

         17  charged was above what the old market rate was, got

         18  an automatic increase.

         19                 So, at the time the rate went up --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm sorry,

         21  Deputy Commissioner. Would you just repeat that so I

         22  understood. You said it's not an automatic increase?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No. We

         24  pay what the child care provider tells us is their

         25  rate up to certain maximums that the State
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          2  establishes.

          3                 So, if a provider had told us that

          4  their rate was the same as the maximum, we paid them

          5  the maximum amount.

          6                 For a provider that told us that

          7  their rate was above the maximum, we couldn't pay

          8  them above the maximum, but we kept that information

          9  in our files so that at the point the State

         10  increased the market rate, we were then able to pay

         11  them more than we had previously been paying them up

         12  to their new rate.

         13                 So, at the point the State increased

         14  the rate, any provider who have previously told us

         15  their rate was above the market rate got that

         16  increase, an automatic increase, there were over 800

         17  providers who were in that category. They didn't

         18  have to file any paperwork, because we already had

         19  paperwork on record that said that their rate was

         20  higher than what we were paying. So, once we were

         21  able to pay them more, we went ahead and

         22  automatically did that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I usually don't

         24  ask questions in the middle of the testimony, but I

         25  just wanted to get this one piece straight because
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          2  it was a little confusing. And also, if you could

          3  bring the microphone closer to you, that would help.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Sure. I

          5  think that they're changing the volume levels on me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, but it

          7  does need to be fairly close.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         10                 But you're not saying that someone

         11  whose cost did get up to the new maximum would not

         12  automatically get the new maximum if they applied

         13  properly.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, if

         15  they apply properly, I was just making a distinction

         16  between people who had on record that their rate was

         17  higher than the maximum rate, they would

         18  automatically get it because we knew that their rate

         19  was above what we were able to pay, we just could

         20  only pay a certain maximum.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, continue.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: People

         24  whose rate was at the old maximum need to tell us

         25  that their rate has gone up and under the State
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          2  regulations they need to provide some documentation

          3  as to why their rate has gone up, assuming we get

          4  that information and it checks out, then they will

          5  get the new market rate also.

          6                 Again, we've tried to make that

          7  easier by sending information directly to providers.

          8  It's something we've never done, developed a

          9  one-page form so they can quickly file it, again

         10  something we've never done, and those mailings went

         11  out several weeks ago to 30,000, over 30,000 parents

         12  and about 24,000 providers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, so, the

         14  rate took effect in October. Your letters went out,

         15  and I'm very happy, I think it is progress that

         16  you're taking a more proactive approach, and with

         17  all due respect, I find it a little amazing that in

         18  the past the idea was that people had to meet each

         19  other on the street corner and tell each other there

         20  was a new rate and that's how people found out.

         21                 I don't think that's what we call

         22  government at its best.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         24  we've corrected that, though. And two years ago the

         25  rate actually went down, so it's not also a
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          2  guarantee that the rate will go up every two years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, that's

          4  not good either. I guess I'm saying I want to give

          5  credit where credit is due. As much as I'm kind of

          6  appalled that it was not done in the past, I am

          7  happy it was done now that there was an effort to

          8  actually reach out across the board and tell, you're

          9  saying providers and parents, everyone you knew of

         10  in this system, about this increased rate.

         11                 Now, that was October. This went out

         12  now in March. And I want to talk to you about what

         13  people have to do to satisfy the need for

         14  information here, but so that the announcement goes

         15  out, people will send back a response in the coming

         16  weeks let's say, so now you're into April, how long

         17  is it going to take you to certify that each

         18  individual provider deserves the new rate?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Once we

         20  get the new information, assuming it's complete, we

         21  will clock that in at the date we receive it. It may

         22  take us a couple of weeks after that to effectively

         23  process the rate increase, but we will do it

         24  retroactive to the date that we get the complete

         25  information. So, we will protect the provider, to
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          2  the extent that they need to submit what they need

          3  to submit. If it takes us a couple of weeks because

          4  of the volume of requests we're getting to go

          5  through it, we will give them the rate effective to

          6  the month that starts, effective to the date they

          7  submit it essentially.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. But

          9  we still have a distance between October and April,

         10  I understand. But let me first do this: So, I'm a

         11  provider and I send in my form and it's April 10th,

         12  and you date stamp and that means everything is

         13  qualified for April 10th. You do the check on me,

         14  everything is good, and now I am eligible for that

         15  new rate.

         16                 When would I start to see the effects

         17  of that new rate in the money I receive?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         19  the rates go into effect in the month, the month

         20  after it's approved, that's the standard protocol.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, it would be

         22  May.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: So, they

         24  would go into effect May 1st, even if we did, there

         25  was some delay and we will obviously try and
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          2  minimize any delay in notifying somebody. If you got

          3  all your material in April 10th, you would get it

          4  effective May 1st.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          6                 But now help me understand a couple

          7  of things. So, if the rate took effect in October

          8  and now I'm a case example, I wouldn't get something

          9  in May, so about half a year has gone by. But let's

         10  say you have evidence, as you said, from previous

         11  applications that my need was already greater than

         12  the new rate, would I have an opportunity to get

         13  retroactive for October to May?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: As I

         15  said before, if a provider had a rate that was above

         16  what we were charging, they had the opportunity all

         17  the way along to submit that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: If they had I'm

         19  saying.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: And if

         21  they had, then we would have paid that and they

         22  would have automatically got the new rate when the

         23  rate increased.

         24                 We don't generally go retroactive

         25  beyond what I said at the point that we get the
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          2  materials, but we don't go retroactive, because at

          3  any point a provider can come in and say that the

          4  rate has increased, there's nothing that prevents

          5  them from doing that, and as I said, over 800

          6  providers had a rate above what the market rate was

          7  at the time.

          8                 So, the concept of going back beyond

          9  the day that they had a retroactive rate increase,

         10  people had an opportunity to tell us, we think, and

         11  should have told us --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm saying

         13  those people, I'm saying for the people who had

         14  previously documented to your satisfaction that

         15  their rate was above the previous maximum --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now you have a

         18  new maximum, and to say it again, the rate was at or

         19  above that; will they get retroactive til October

         20  '05? Because they had done the documentation to

         21  your satisfaction before that point.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, if

         23  they did the documentation to our satisfaction, they

         24  would have been in the system and they would have

         25  gotten the rate increase at the time they asked for
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          2  it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But I'm saying

          4  if their request was above what the maximum was

          5  before October --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: -- Now in

          8  October you get a new maximum, they quality for that

          9  too, but you're only sending out your forms now,

         10  they respond now, are you going to say, okay, these

         11  folks are on record way back when, pre-October, if

         12  the new rate had been in effect when they sent their

         13  original forms they would have gotten the equivalent

         14  of the new rate, are you going to retro them to

         15  October?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: They

         17  would have already gotten it. They would have been

         18  in the group of 800 that we had on file as asking

         19  for that market rate of what we could pay. We

         20  couldn't pay more than we could what the rate was

         21  prior to October, so we kept their file, their

         22  documentation on file, when we were allowed to pay

         23  more, we did pay more.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So you did that

         25  proactively.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, now I got

          5  that.

          6                 Now, let me take again, I'll be the

          7  provider and I've sent in my form for April 10th and

          8  now you're looking at, and if I'm lucky, May 1st is

          9  going to be when I actually get increased payment.

         10  But let's take the example of there is some concern,

         11  there's something in the form that you need more

         12  information on, there's something that makes you

         13  think the person would not receive the new maximum,

         14  how do you handle it from there?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: What we

         16  intend to do with all the requests we get first is

         17  send a letter acknowledging that we got the request

         18  so that people are aware of that.

         19                 If we get something that we can't

         20  understand, or we feel like we need more

         21  information, or perhaps we're not reading it

         22  correctly, we'll send another letter out asking

         23  people to send in additional information. When they

         24  do that, we'll then do a complete review, and when

         25  we've done a review and concluded that they can get
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          2  the rate, or they can't get the rate, whatever it

          3  is, we will then send them a third letter explaining

          4  what the new rate is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So,

          6  basically it's an exchange back and forth of

          7  letters. It's not like an in-person appointment or a

          8  phone call or whatever?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

         10  Generally not, if people have questions about the

         11  materials of what they could file, about those kinds

         12  of things, are certainly free to call or to come

         13  into our offices to discuss it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Now, let

         15  me ask you about the form. And I want to make sure

         16  we understand this appropriately. And we have a

         17  blow-up here, maybe you can just angle it a little

         18  bit more, so that Committee members can see it.

         19                 It's hard to see, but I think you can

         20  personally inspect it, though, Committee members.

         21                 Okay, I am looking, and Deputy

         22  Commissioner, tell me if anything I am saying here

         23  is that I've gotten the wrong information, but what

         24  I am looking at, it says on the cover here, Form

         25  EXP-80, and it is dated 3/13/06, so it appears to be
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          2  very recent, HRA Family Independence Administration.

          3  The first part is a fact sheet on child care market

          4  rate, which I'm just going to editorialize, as

          5  someone who has seen a lot of forms in my day, I get

          6  lost on this one real quick, trying to understand

          7  it. And I get lost both because there's a bunch of

          8  different options given, but also because there's a

          9  chart, which I find a little hard to figure out.

         10  Again, this appears to be the information sheet. And

         11  there's two pages to that.

         12                 And then there's an application,

         13  which is titled "The Provider Information Change

         14  Request." Again, if at any point I'm looking at the

         15  wrong thing or something, just tell me.

         16                 And, again, I'm finding this a little

         17  difficult to figure out what's being asked for here

         18  in each case. So, my question to you is, are these,

         19  and I do see a phone number, well I see a fax

         20  number, I'm sorry. I see a fax number, I do not see

         21  a phone number to call for more information. I do

         22  see a website but not a phone number. So, is this

         23  all the accurate information about what you've sent

         24  to people and what they're supposed to respond with?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay, a
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          2  couple of things. First, the information sheet and

          3  the change request form were the material that were

          4  sent to parents. Those were sent to over 30,000

          5  parents, 31,000 parents.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The fact sheet

          7  and the provider information.

          8                 Okay, so the fact sheet went to

          9  parents?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The fact

         11  sheet and the change request form. The provider

         12  information change request went to parents. Those

         13  were sent to over 31,000 parents.

         14                 In addition, we sent a fact sheet to

         15  over 24,000 providers, one that was geared towards

         16  them with similar information about the new rates.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And that's the

         18  child care subsidy market rate changes fact sheet?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         20  that's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: And

         23  you'll see on the parent fact sheet in particular,

         24  there is the phone number for HRA's info line right

         25  on the first page.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right, now

          3  let me look at that again.

          4                 Every Committee member should have in

          5  your question packets these forms for your perusal.

          6  You can tell me if I'm the only one who can't make

          7  sense of them.

          8                 Okay, I see you have that in the

          9  third bullet point there, the info line number.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That's

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, the parent

         13  receives this first one, Fact Sheet on Child Care

         14  Market Rate, for parents who receive the public

         15  assistance, and then there is a form to fill out.

         16  Again, I'm saying to you, I find this hard to

         17  understand, and I'm, you know -- (applause).

         18                 So, it starts by saying if you are

         19  satisfied with your current provider, and this is

         20  the one to parents, if you are satisfied with your

         21  current provider, and if HRA pays the amount your

         22  provider charges, you do not have to do anything at

         23  this time. I support any form that tells me I don't

         24  have to do anything. So, I appreciate that concept,

         25  but I have two problems with it.
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          2                 First of all, I don't understand how

          3  many parents know if HRA pays the amount their

          4  provider charges. I mean, I just feel like -- and I

          5  think you know, you've been doing this work a long

          6  time, I think you know that the whole problem with

          7  everything in New York City is everyone is trying to

          8  get along and make it, survive, and there's not

          9  enough time, and particularly families with young

         10  children have a lot of challenges, but if you add to

         11  it people who are struggling for self-sufficiency,

         12  it seems to me any barrier you put up in terms of

         13  communication is going to create a lot of problems,

         14  so the provider, the provider and the parent would

         15  have to be in a high level of communication here,

         16  and everyone clear what they're saying to each other

         17  to know right away what the answer is to that first

         18  question.

         19                 And then the second thing that

         20  worries me is, a lot of parents, again, in the rush

         21  of life could look at that and say, oh, I don't have

         22  to do something when in fact they did have to do

         23  something.

         24                 So, could you respond on those?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes. On
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          2  your first point, I think you sort of hit the nail

          3  on the head when you said that we're trying to

          4  foster a level of communication between parent and

          5  provider. We're trying to establish a system that

          6  will survive beyond the time that HRA or ACS or

          7  there is any public subsidy involved. As people make

          8  more money and they get to the point where they're

          9  not eligible for subsidies, they're going to need to

         10  have that close working relationship with their

         11  provider in order to be able to continue the good

         12  child care that can support them as they work, so,

         13  we view our role as supporting that, and getting

         14  that started. So, we don't want to be seen as

         15  getting in the middle of the parent or the provider.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm going to

         17  interrupt again. I apologize.

         18                 I appreciate everyone's very strong

         19  feelings in the audience, but I want to get through

         20  this dialogue, so bear with me here a moment.

         21                 It feels to me, who wouldn't want the

         22  provider and the parent communicating? We all agree

         23  on that. But I also think when you're talking about

         24  the ability of the provider to stay in business, and

         25  therefore the ability of the parent to actually have

                                                            48

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  access to the service, you know, that's not the

          3  place for us to be doing the social work of trying

          4  to get people to all communicate better with each

          5  other.

          6                 So, my point to you, I mean why

          7  couldn't this all be done between HRA and the

          8  provider, because the provider clearly does know.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay,

         10  and our relationship is with the parent, and we

         11  support the parents who are participating or

         12  employed in work activities.

         13                 We view it similar to the way we

         14  support people in public assistance who we pay rent

         15  on their behalf with landlords.

         16                 We're not in a direct relationship

         17  with landlords. If landlords raise people's rents,

         18  the landlords don't contact us directly, but we pay

         19  thousands of people's rent each month directly to

         20  landlords.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Here is my

         22  problem. Again, I understand that in theory but let

         23  me just, and if any other agency wants to weigh in,

         24  please do, because I think this affects all.

         25                 You're all here because of some of
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          2  what Deputy Commissioner Chaudry said in his

          3  testimony, there is -- and I commend this

          4  Administration for trying to create an integration

          5  of all of the agencies, and all of the efforts

          6  related to children. That is an extremely important

          7  initiative. And I think it's fair to say that you

          8  take, Deputy Commissioner Diamond, you're looking at

          9  family self-sufficiency --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Amen. Whereas,

         12  Deputy Commissioner Chaudry is also looking at

         13  supply the quality of child care as sort of one of

         14  his first missions, and our friends from health are

         15  looking at health and safety of settings involving

         16  children. Everyone has got positive goals and they

         17  have to meet somewhere.

         18                 So, if you're trying to get folks to

         19  work on self-sufficiency, noble as that may be, but

         20  there isn't enough communication in the way this

         21  effort works so that you actually could have folks

         22  not getting the payments they deserve, providers not

         23  getting the payments they deserve, not able to stay

         24  in business, parents not able to access the care

         25  they need for the kids. There's a bigger goal here
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          2  that involves all of you. And my concern is, I'm not

          3  saying you couldn't have two different tracks where

          4  you're trying to do a lot of things to make sure the

          5  parents take responsibility and is communicating,

          6  but if the provider is the one that knows the facts

          7  you're seeking, why not do this transaction with the

          8  provider? That's what I'm trying to get at.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Let me

         10  first say that we agree with you that the goals of

         11  all our agencies are not exclusive. I mean, we work

         12  together all the time to make sure that they support

         13  each other, and we do have somewhat different

         14  emphasis, but it doesn't mean that we're solely

         15  focused on that approach.

         16                 We agree that providing good, stable,

         17  quality child care is essential for going to work.

         18  We could not have had the accomplishments we have

         19  had with welfare to work unless we had good, stable

         20  child care provided to thousands of parents each

         21  day, and they continue to work with people as

         22  they're working and as they make the transition.

         23  That has absolutely been a foundation of our success

         24  in welfare reform.

         25                 We want to continue that success, and
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          2  one of the things we think has also helped us do

          3  that is our relationship with the parent,

          4  encouraging parents and providers to work together,

          5  and we view our approach on this of trying to get

          6  parents and providers to talk together about what

          7  the rate is. Asking a provider and a parent to sign

          8  a form together, we don't view that as a

          9  particularly burdensome obligation. Parents drop

         10  their child off at the providers every day. They can

         11  work together on filling out this one-page form, and

         12  then they can send that in. The provider can send it

         13  in or the parent could send it in once it's been

         14  signed. We think that that will help the

         15  communication between the two without imposing an

         16  undue burden on the parent or the provider and will

         17  foster our goals of communication between the two

         18  and continue our process of working with the parent

         19  to support their efforts for self-sufficiency.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Look, I'm not

         21  doubting that there is a virtue in what you're

         22  saying. This is common sense here. If you look even

         23  at what has been done, you know, with tax forms and

         24  what you guys have done, I think to your credit,

         25  around the food stamp form, and a lot of places what
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          2  3-1-1 is all about, everything is about simplifying

          3  the way you work with government in a very complex

          4  city. And I'm telling you, I'm looking at this. I've

          5  read it a bunch of times. This is not simple and

          6  straight forward. It's not the worst form I've ever

          7  seen, but it's not simple and straightforward.

          8                 And, so, my concern here is that we

          9  want the equation to work. I feel like there's a

         10  higher calling. You want every one of these forms to

         11  come back accurately, you want the people to get

         12  paid who need to get paid. That's more important

         13  than anything else.

         14                 Let me raise another point related to

         15  you. You know, where the State of New York is on

         16  this issue, because my impression, I'm just going to

         17  read you something here, is that, I think suggests

         18  that the State sees this as an appropriate

         19  transaction with the provider. So, the local

         20  Commissioner's memorandum, which is issued by the

         21  New York State Office of Children and Family

         22  Services, regarding the new market rates, this was

         23  for the ones effective October 1st, 2005, and this

         24  memorandum explicitly addressed how to determine the

         25  actual cost of care for providers who do not have a
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          2  contract with a government agency, but who care only

          3  for subsidized children. So this is the folks we're

          4  talking about here. And this is from the memorandum.

          5                 "If a provider cares only for

          6  children receiving child care subsidies and does not

          7  have a contract with the social services district,

          8  then the actual cost of care is the rate the

          9  provider currently receives from the social services

         10  district.

         11                 If a provider can document the costs

         12  unreimbursed by other sources of funding related to

         13  the provision of child care services have increased

         14  in comparison to the previous 12 months, then that

         15  provider may request a higher rate, a higher payment

         16  rate from the district."

         17                 So, this is a state, a state

         18  memorandum saying the provider may request it from

         19  the district. So, why wouldn't that be enough right

         20  there to say that you certainly can have the

         21  transaction be directly between you guys and the

         22  provider to make sure in this moment of transition

         23  that everyone gives you the information they need

         24  and everyone gets the payment they deserve?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay,
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          2  let me just say back to your earlier point that

          3  while we didn't create the worst form you've ever

          4  seen, it's in the bottom third or something like

          5  that.

          6                 We obviously wanted to create a form

          7  that was understandable. There's a lot of

          8  information. You're balancing trying to fit it all

          9  in a little amount of space with trying to get

         10  people what they need. But beyond that, if people

         11  have questions, we have people available to answer

         12  questions.

         13                 We understand that this is confusing.

         14  The number of rates, the number of variables

         15  involved, but that's why we have hot lines set up,

         16  that's why we have people available to answer

         17  questions. So, we understand that people may need

         18  assistance, we're prepared to provide that.

         19                 Secondly, in terms of what you're

         20  saying, and it gets back to our relationship with

         21  the parent, our transactions on child care run

         22  through the parent, we pay on behalf of the parent,

         23  we view this kind of rate increase as another

         24  example of something that the parent should work out

         25  with the provider. It's not a burdensome obligation.
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          2  The two can fill out the form on one morning when

          3  they drop the children off and then we can process

          4  it.

          5                 We think, again, it's consistent with

          6  our overall approach of supporting the parent,

          7  letting them make the choices on child care, and

          8  having them have the direct communication with the

          9  provider.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I've made my

         11  point, you've made your point. I'm going to try and

         12  finish this because a bunch of other people here

         13  have questions. But I'm going to ask you point blank

         14  about a couple of things.

         15                 And you admit, as you did a moment

         16  ago, that this is a complex topic, and I didn't tell

         17  you, when you take a complex topic, and people

         18  dropping off kids in the morning on the way to work

         19  and one thing or another, that's not a good

         20  combination, and even though I'm gender challenged,

         21  I have dropped my children at child care on the way

         22  to work and I can tell you what it feels like.

         23                 So, are you willing, in accordance to

         24  what this State memorandum says, to alter this

         25  approach and do this transaction directly with the
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          2  providers?

          3                 I'm just asking you a point blank

          4  question.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: As I

          6  said before, our interaction is with the parent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just help me

          8  with a yes or no. Are you willing to do that? Are

          9  you willing to alter the process so you would do it

         10  directly with the providers, in the interest of

         11  making sure this transition goes smoothly? It's a

         12  very straightforward question.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I

         14  understand that. But I think giving a yes or no

         15  answer without some explanation is not fair to the

         16  answer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: How about start

         18  with a yes or no and explain the yes or no?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

         20  would like to do the explanation and the answer at

         21  the end.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I think

         24  it's better to do it that way.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Fine.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Again,

          3  our relationship is with the parent. We view the

          4  best structure as supporting them, and they have the

          5  relationship with the provider. We'll pay them, pay

          6  the provider on the parents' behalf. So we continue

          7  to believe that the best way to do this is to have

          8  the information come through the parent.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's a no.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We think

         11  that together they can fill out the one-page form

         12  and submit it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right,

         14  fine. I don't know what's so hard about -- we didn't

         15  even put you under oath. You're saying no. I'm going

         16  to suggest you're saying no. If you want to disagree

         17  with that, why don't you tell me.

         18                 Okay, secondly. Secondly, I believe

         19  if you talk to the folks at 311 and Bloomberg and

         20  lots of other places and said, hey, how can we make

         21  this even more straightforward so that it's really

         22  clear, you know, which kind of situations qualify

         23  for which type of-- you know, something that someone

         24  trying to make sense of this form would have the

         25  most straightforward, easiest time doing it. Parent,
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          2  I'll even grant you parent or provider.

          3                 If I said to you, you know, isn't

          4  there a way to make this form even better, again at

          5  a moment when it's transitional, and if people don't

          6  understand the form or don't send it in promptly,

          7  you mean that it means that people are not getting

          8  resources they duly deserve, and, therefore, may not

          9  be able to continue doing the work, et cetera, et

         10  cetera. Do you believe this form could be improved

         11  upon, and would you be willing to try and improve

         12  upon it?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Sure.

         14  You know, we're always happy to take suggestions.

         15                 As I said, we're trying to do a forum

         16  that we thought was clear with another set of eyes

         17  looking at it, has other ideas, we'd be happy to do

         18  it. We have the same goal which is to provide

         19  accurate and clear information to the parents and to

         20  the providers so they know what their options are.

         21  If there's a better way to state it, that it's

         22  consistent with the rules, we'll be happy to

         23  entertain it. And if it means doing another mailing

         24  that would be clearer, we would be happy to look at

         25  that too.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, that's

          3  very much appreciated. So, if a group of providers

          4  were to work together and come up with some ideas of

          5  what would actually make clearer sense and be more

          6  user-friendly for them to submit them, you would

          7  duly look at that in like, you know, a reasonable

          8  time period? And if you thought it was valid, you

          9  would be open to sending out another mailing?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We

         11  certainly would consider it, absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Excellent.

         13                 Oh my God, Commissioner, we've

         14  experienced progress.

         15                 I don't know what to do now, I'm

         16  paralyzed.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Can I be

         18  excused or?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I would like to

         20  first welcome Tom White from the General Welfare

         21  Committee, and now I'd like to turn over questions

         22  first to my Co-Chair Helen Sears, and then several

         23  of other colleagues.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         25  much. And I want to thank Council Member DeBlasio,
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          2  Chair of the Welfare Committee, for inviting the

          3  Women's Committee to participate in this hearing.

          4  And I want to thank you, basically, for coming.

          5                 I'm going to have a couple just very

          6  few short questions, because it's lengthy and I know

          7  that my colleagues have questions.

          8                 The first thing is that, I worked for

          9  the Department for the Aging, and for those senior

         10  centers and for the funding, which came from the

         11  federal government and so on, when I started there

         12  must have been seven pages to an application

         13  process, and our goal was each year to really modify

         14  those instruments as they were called, so that

         15  everyone would be on the same page.

         16                 But we also held meetings, so my

         17  question is, even though the Councilman has been

         18  wonderful in getting it reduced to such a point,

         19  have you ever put the providers in a room and you've

         20  got five boroughs, so you would look at

         21  regionalizing that, so that everyone would

         22  understand and have the questions and there would be

         23  no misunderstanding about the information that is

         24  given because, one, sending it through the mail, and

         25  I can understand that it's expedient to do that,

                                                            61

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  it's not expedient to provide the kind of services

          3  that are necessary, because if this application is

          4  not filled in properly, it has to go back, it has to

          5  go back and it has to go back.

          6                 So, I don't understand why, and you

          7  may regionalize it, I'm not telling you basically

          8  how to do that, but what is the objection to pulling

          9  the providers into a meeting and explaining that

         10  you've changed something that now requires the

         11  parents to do something, and I can tell you, I'm a

         12  parent of three children, and parents are working

         13  and that's why they need child care, and they are a

         14  necessary element for the economy of the family, how

         15  can they take time to fill in an application or

         16  write a letter when they really don't understand

         17  quite what they're doing? So, what happens is that

         18  so many are rejected, have to go back through the

         19  process again, when that could all be avoided if

         20  they knew what it was you wanted, so that you would

         21  put everybody in a room, and anticipate increased

         22  rate changes. Because you have to do that, you know,

         23  at some point that there are going to be rate

         24  increases.

         25                 And also, involved in that question
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          2  is the fact, that the State had where the provider

          3  did that. Has the State approved this process where

          4  you are now asking the parent to do it? I don't know

          5  that's a question, you may have or you may not have.

          6  It would seem to me that you would have to go to the

          7  State to enlighten them about this change in the

          8  process?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, a

         10  couple of things.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I know that's a

         12  mouthful.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, no,

         14  a couple of points.

         15                 First, in terms of the paperwork, we

         16  have reduced the paperwork, as I said earlier, the

         17  child care provider form --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: If I may

         19  interrupt, I see that, but I could tell you, you may

         20  have reduced it, but you certainly didn't improve

         21  the clarity.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         23  again, our goal is to try and have the material be

         24  clearer. If there's a way to do that, we're happy to

         25  consider that.
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          2                 We do have provider workshops. We've

          3  run provider workshops in all the boroughs in the

          4  evenings, and the City also runs, in cooperation

          5  with ACS and the Department of Education, an

          6  institute for the development of informal providers

          7  through the City University system. It's a several

          8  hundred thousand dollar investment, precisely to

          9  develop better materials for informal providers, to

         10  provide better information, to run workshops and

         11  provide training. We think that's a sign of our

         12  commitment to enhance informal providers, to

         13  professionalize them, and to be able to give them

         14  the information they need to effectively run

         15  programs.

         16                 We are happy to continue to run, and

         17  we plan to continue to run workshops where obviously

         18  the rate increase would be one of many issues that

         19  would come up. We do them again generally by

         20  borough, to try and get the word out as best we can.

         21  We tell people who call the hot line who are having

         22  issues about upcoming workshops, so we try and let

         23  people know and then we'll answer any questions we

         24  can at that point.

         25                 If there's concern about some of the
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          2  material we sent out, maybe now would be a good time

          3  to make sure that we have workshops scheduled in the

          4  near future, and we're happy to do that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: That leads to my

          6  question, for this process did you have workshops,

          7  since this process has changed? Have you had a

          8  workshop dealing with the changes that you required

          9  and how they could do that? Or will you start or

         10  initiate these workshops now so that they're filled

         11  in properly, and the provider will not be losing the

         12  money of that rate increase, because you say it only

         13  starts when they actually have completed, and

         14  rightfully so, an application that would make them

         15  eligible for that rate increase.

         16                 So, in order to avoid that, that

         17  delay, which is a very critical delay, did you have

         18  workshops before for this, or will you start to do

         19  it now?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We have

         21  ongoing workshops on payment issues, not

         22  specifically targeted to the rate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay, you have

         24  them on payment. All right. Then I'll ask you a

         25  direct question.
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          2                 Are you prepared to have these

          3  workshops on this new process so that since this

          4  process is in operation and you're requiring parents

          5  to do it, which may be a problem on how you get

          6  parents together, but are you prepared to do a

          7  workshop on this new process?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We can

          9  certainly, again, have workshops for providers who

         10  have issues around the rate increase.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: We're talking

         12  about parents. You changed the process to have the

         13  parents write and fill in. That's a whole different

         14  process. So, my question to you was, did the State

         15  approve it? And secondly, having a workshop for the

         16  providers, there may be miscommunication and they

         17  don't understand, and these providers have got the

         18  kids around, who's dropping them off, and who's

         19  picking them up, you can't expect in that

         20  environment that these parents, and not for lack of

         21  understanding, but certainly for the attention they

         22  are giving to the whole operation that's going on.

         23                 So, if you change a process, you

         24  can't expect the providers to be able to do the job

         25  that is required for that change in process without
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          2  including the parents. I don't know how you can

          3  expect an efficient operation like that. And that's

          4  not because the providers can't do it. I mean, it

          5  seems like there's something not right, and if it's

          6  not right you need to correct it. And it seems like

          7  the communication is not right. It seems that it

          8  changed a process without really giving any

          9  workshops to the parents that involves the parents,

         10  and now you're needing their request in order to

         11  fill that slot with the rate increase that the

         12  providers need to take care of their kids. It seems

         13  like you've put a few extra layers in there. That's

         14  a very bunglesome process.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I don't

         16  think we changed the process except for the better.

         17  But for informal providers we've always taken the

         18  information from parents. That's always been the

         19  procedure. The only difference now is that the

         20  material that parents have to submit has been

         21  significantly reduced from a multi-page form that is

         22  close to a phonebook, to a one page form. So, we've

         23  made it easier for parents to submit the materials,

         24  but again, it has always for informal providers had

         25  to come from the parents. So, that has not been a
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          2  change.

          3                 If there's confusion among the

          4  parents, we do have many of the parents who would be

          5  affected or involved in work activities. We can work

          6  with our vendors to make sure that the word is out,

          7  that they have appropriate information, and to make

          8  sure that they know what needs to be submitted.

          9  That's again, something we're open to consider. And

         10  the provider workshops would be aimed at the

         11  provider.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I understand. I'm

         13  listening to you. Okay, there was one part that I

         14  saw in this, and I don't want to take the time, but

         15  it seemed that where it says they cannot receive

         16  more for the subsidized children than they are

         17  receiving for non-subsidized. That's very clear.

         18  However, it's almost, I could see how some of that

         19  stuff could be, you know, what I'm really saying is,

         20  unless you have workshops for the parents, your

         21  system is going to improve very slowly, very, very

         22  slowly, if at all, and you are going, because of

         23  language barriers you're going to have continuous

         24  confusion and as a result you're going to have a

         25  delay to the providers for increases that are well
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          2  deserved.

          3                 And believe me, I understand the

          4  agencies very much. I've worked with them and I've

          5  worked in health care, and the whole thing is to

          6  basically get where the agencies relate to those who

          7  they are providing the dollars to provide the

          8  services that are essential, and you really have to

          9  come together as a single unit, and right now it's

         10  not a single unit.

         11                 There's the separation of what you

         12  need from the parent, there's the provider, and then

         13  there are all the ifs with your agency. What I think

         14  is necessary is not so much the streamlining of that

         15  application, but to somehow reduce and eliminate a

         16  lot of the ifs. That's what I think is important.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

         18  understand. And as we've already discussed, it's a

         19  complex area. And certainly we're subject to a

         20  number of rules that make it difficult to simplify

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: No, I understand

         23  that.

         24                 You didn't answer my question,

         25  though, and I'll go back to that.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I'm

          3  sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Does the State

          5  have to approve this change in the process, where

          6  you're now asking for letters from the parents? I

          7  mean, not letters but filling that in?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Again,

          9  for informal providers it's the same process we have

         10  always used, we've just simplified the form. This

         11  data has never raised to my knowledge any objection

         12  in the past about what we've done. Continuing that

         13  process, just making it easier.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I see. I see. Will

         15  you make an effort to somehow get these parents

         16  includent (sic) where you're dealing directly with

         17  them and the providers perhaps in that workshop so

         18  that the provider and the parent, and your agency is

         19  in the same understanding environment so that you

         20  could reduce the rejects and keep returning

         21  applications so that the money flows a lot quicker

         22  in receiving those increased rates?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         24  again, we have the same goal of trying to support

         25  the parents and the providers, and it doesn't do
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          2  anyone any good to continue to go back and forth on

          3  materials. It's more work for us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: So, I'm going to

          5  be very hopeful that somehow that process will

          6  clarify --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

          8  Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: And we'll find out

         10  about that. Just one thing about Head Start. It

         11  stated that 99.9 percent are in Head Start programs.

         12  My question is, are many of those Head Start

         13  programs in existing schools? Are they in other

         14  agencies, like, you know, the children's agencies

         15  where the Head Start starts? Do those agencies have

         16  free-standing where the Head Start -- and the reason

         17  I ask that is because sometimes the Head Start money

         18  doesn't come and flow as freely, particularly when

         19  it's gone through another agency and either they're

         20  building a facility, or what, to accommodate and do

         21  the Head Start. That's why I ask that.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: What is actually

         24  your relationship with the federal government so

         25  that we can have more Head Start programs?
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          2                 I know it's wonderful to say 99.9

          3  percent, it's a question of how many programs you

          4  have and how many more do you need.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

          6  First let me correct and say I think I said 99.6

          7  percent. Though I do hope by next week we're at 99.9

          8  percent.

          9                 The Head Start programs in New York,

         10  in New York City there's both a direct grant to New

         11  York City, as the provider of Head Start services,

         12  which is the 20,000 children we talked about.

         13                 The federal government also has

         14  direct grants to community-based organizations for

         15  an additional 4,000 children. Those are direct

         16  between the federal government and those

         17  community-based organizations, which is the more

         18  typical model across the country.

         19                 New York, as well as several other

         20  cities, have these large grants to then administer

         21  the services. The federal government provides the

         22  grant to New York and New York contracts with

         23  community-based organizations to provide Head Start.

         24                 So, there is no Head Start in New

         25  York City, and in other cities it's different in the
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          2  schools. All the Head Start programs are currently

          3  in CBOs. There's 79 such community-based

          4  organizations with whom we contract for 225 Head

          5  Start centers. And, so, the relationship between, as

          6  you said, flows from the federal government for

          7  these 20,000 kids to ACS and from ACS to it's 79

          8  community-based organizations, who we work with very

          9  closely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         11  much. And thank you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         13  Chair Sears.

         14                 Several more colleagues have

         15  questions for this panel. First, Gale Brewer.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         17  much. And I know ACS and HRA and mental health are

         18  all trying, but I'm more on the general side, and

         19  maybe parochial at the same time. I'll try to back

         20  into some of the issues that were discussed today.

         21                 I checked with some of the child care

         22  centers in my district on the west side today, and

         23  just in terms of this voucher issue, this really is

         24  going on. I know in terms of OST, Manhattan in

         25  particular got hurt in terms of funding. At least my
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          2  district, and I think some of the other Manhattan

          3  districts. And the issue is, when you transition out

          4  of a center, because there is no funding for the

          5  after school portion, you need to go -- in one case,

          6  in one center there were 28 families who were

          7  transitioning out under ACS guidelines, and there

          8  are just a lot of questions. They are told that by

          9  the end of the summer camp that they have to move

         10  on, and they're not clear about a voucher. Are they

         11  all entitled? They're wait listed, and if, in fact,

         12  they find another center to go to, they're told that

         13  they have to be referred by OST. And I just would

         14  like to understand how these families, and I assume

         15  these are not the only 28 families in this situation

         16  in the whole City of New York, so I'm just

         17  wondering, obviously, how does this process happen,

         18  and of course maybe when they enter the voucher

         19  world, how will that be streamlined according to

         20  what you said her today?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Okay.

         22  Thank you, Councilwoman.

         23                 As you know, these are not the only

         24  28 families. We have about 5,700 children. We

         25  estimate that is probably about 4,000 families who
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          2  are currently in ACS school-age child care programs.

          3  Over 150 of them in the City. As you know, as part

          4  of the OST transition, OST started in

          5  September 2006 -- I mean, I'm sorry, in 2005, and

          6  will be expanding to September 2006, include more

          7  locations, and ACS's school age program will be

          8  phased out. It was phased out in last fall, and it

          9  will be further phased out completely this fall. So,

         10  on September 8th, ACS school age child care centers

         11  will no longer be providing contracted school age

         12  child care.

         13                 We do continue to provide vouchers,

         14  and the way this works is, and last year and this

         15  year we are doing extensive communication with the

         16  parents, and we're doing it with DYCD as well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Keep going.

         18  But the communication is not --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

         20  And I can tell you a little bit more. There is a

         21  letter that's going out, it may have gone out

         22  yesterday, as far as I know, to the parents around

         23  this. All parents will be told, and there will be

         24  open houses for all the OST programs in their

         25  neighborhood. And every parent who chooses to can
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          2  also request a voucher. So, the answer to that

          3  question is yes. If they choose to take a voucher,

          4  they can request a voucher, and we gave vouchers to

          5  every parent who asked for it last year. Last year

          6  we had about 2,000 families, 2,000 children

          7  transition out of OST, I mean out of ACS school-age

          8  child care, about 1,400 went into OST and the rest,

          9  most of the rest took vouchers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, but the

         11  problem is what you're saying is that, how do you

         12  answer this? I as a parent find a provider, I don't

         13  want a voucher, I want to go to a center, which is

         14  my preference, and they are then told that they have

         15  to be referred by OST. That's what the center that

         16  the parent found told them. What does that mean?

         17  That they can't a slot unless they're referred by

         18  OST?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: I'm not

         20  sure I know.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: I'll

         23  need DYCD to answer that question.

         24                 What we say is, you can take the

         25  voucher -- I mean, I can answer about the voucher.
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          2  You can take a voucher to any center, you can take a

          3  voucher to informal car, you can take a voucher to

          4  family child care, and that covers the service. And

          5  anybody who is willing to accept the voucher for

          6  payment.

          7                 OST is similar to our old model which

          8  is you have contract centers. You go to the center

          9  and you sign up. I don't think OST centers, but I

         10  don't know the answer, can refer you to another

         11  center.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. So, what

         13  I will do is I will bring this later on

         14  specifically. But I think that there are going to

         15  be, with this number of children, 5,700, a lot of

         16  these kinds of questions. And maybe what you could

         17  do is to send to the elected officials what the

         18  process is clearly, and then we could help explain

         19  it to the 28 families, all of whom are calling me.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Sure. We

         21  would be happy to do that. I mean, I can tell you

         22  what there are open houses in four boroughs.

         23  Actually, beginning next week, on April 4th is the

         24  first one, and that information has been sent out by

         25  DYCD and it's being sent out by us. Sorry, those
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          2  will be forums to discuss the transition, and then

          3  there's going to be an open house period from April

          4  10th to April 20th, in which parents will be asked

          5  to visit their local OST programs and decide if they

          6  want to move to OST, and then beginning in May there

          7  will be an open enrollment period where parents will

          8  have the option to either move to OST in the summer,

          9  or move to OST in the fall. And obviously in the

         10  fall, for those who care to take them, we'll be

         11  offering vouchers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Let me just

         13  ask you a question. For families who prefer to be in

         14  a center, as opposed to in a home, will there be

         15  enough slots for these 5,700 in centers, as opposed

         16  to family day care?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: In the

         18  fall there will be. And that's one of the reasons

         19  that we continued to provide services through the

         20  summer.

         21                 In the fall, in the fall there will

         22  be more slots under the OST system than there was in

         23  the school age child care system, and the children

         24  moving from school age child care are given first

         25  priority for placement.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And they know

          3  that?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: They do

          5  know that. They will need to be -- as we learned

          6  last year, we have to remind them regularly and we

          7  have to meet with them regularly to ensure that they

          8  know that and we are providing all that information.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Another

         10  question completely different is rent. Many child

         11  care centers, I don't know if this is true just in

         12  Manhattan, but I would assume since we have a boom

         13  of real estate across the City rent is a problem. Is

         14  that something that is being looked at in terms of

         15  funding? Because if you can't afford your space,

         16  then you can't afford to have a child care center

         17  and rents are going up.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: I can

         19  confirm that rent is a problem.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes, we all

         21  know that, Ajay, thank you.

         22                 What about funding for this rent?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

         24  It's a major problem that we at ACS are facing,

         25  because as you know, most of ACS's care is
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          2  contracted care.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: And to

          5  go back briefly to the example of Head Start, this

          6  has been an issue we faced because we had a 21

          7  percent or so, don't quote me on that, around 20

          8  percent increase in our rental cost last year, and

          9  the Head Start federal funding for that is flat.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Got it.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: And that

         12  cuts into program. This is a problem that we are

         13  facing that we are working with our programs on, and

         14  it is something that we have to face in the context

         15  of OST as well, to make the most efficient use of

         16  the facilities that we have and to --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sorry, you

         18  have to translate that. What does that mean? In

         19  other words, we're making efficient, but they just

         20  need money for the rent.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

         22  So, what we're saying is that in our movement in the

         23  Strategic Plan II, a mix of contracted and voucher

         24  care, those empty classrooms, if programs choose,

         25  should be used to develop voucher services. Those
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          2  could be voucher services for younger kids, I mean

          3  which is one of the things that we're encouraging

          4  for toddlers. And we can obviously only pay, just

          5  like we're held on the Head Start side to the amount

          6  of the grant, we can only pay up to the market rate.

          7                 So, within the market rate, you have

          8  to be able to pay for rent and food. The price of

          9  milk is also going up, and salaries. And we

         10  understand that, but those are the constraints on

         11  the system. Market rate in the case of child care,

         12  the Head Start grant in the case of Head Start.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But should

         14  there be some allocation in addition? You know, in

         15  OMB new needs request for something like this?

         16  Because I don't think that the outline that you just

         17  described is going to address that 21 percent

         18  increase in Head Start, not to mention all of the

         19  childhood centers that are calling me that are

         20  located in many times religious institutions, which

         21  are stating we can get more rent from another

         22  program and so you cannot any longer be at this

         23  institution.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY:

         25  Councilwoman, I agree with you. I can't answer that
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          2  at this time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Could

          4  you give us a list of, not today, obviously, but to

          5  the chairs, a list of those centers that have

          6  contacted you, Head Start, or those that you

          7  contract with that have indicated a major rent issue

          8  that is not able to be addressed by their current

          9  income?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: We can

         11  try to develop a list. We can work with individual

         12  Council members about programs in their community.

         13  And we will try to develop a comprehensive list on

         14  both the Head Start and child care side.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you,

         18  Councilwoman.

         19                 Our next colleague to ask some

         20  questions, Letitia James.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you,

         22  Chairwoman. First let me begin my comments and my

         23  questions to Mr. Chaudry and then I'll get to Mr.

         24  Diamond.

         25                 First let me thank you for speaking

                                                            82

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  about the accelerated enrollment. Thank you for this

          3  simplified form. Thank you for the integrated

          4  system, and with regards to the integrated system,

          5  does it include information, enrolling children in

          6  Child Care Plus or any health care programs?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: In a

          8  meeting in the fall we did talk with the Department

          9  of Health about moving towards trying to do

         10  something like that, because in fact much of the

         11  model for the simplified form and the idea of doing

         12  it on a facilitated basis at the community level,

         13  which is another direction we're moving in, we will

         14  be at some point in the future contracting with

         15  community-based organizations to facilitate

         16  enrollment throughout their community, and those

         17  would be great places to be Child Health Plus --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, I would

         19  urge you to continue with those discussions.

         20                 I'm very much concerned, you

         21  mentioned the federal review of Head Start known as

         22  PRISM, and I'm very much concerned with that,

         23  whenever I hear talk about performance standards,

         24  that concerns me, and I know you share those

         25  concerns, because it is coming from the federal
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          2  government.

          3                 And I would like a list of those 22

          4  low-performing agencies to see whether any or not

          5  are in my district. And, so, if you can forward that

          6  to my attention, that would be greatly appreciated.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Diamond. Mr. Diamond, I read that

          9  fact sheet and I'm very concerned about how the

         10  process you are now shifting the burden to parents

         11  to apply for monies which are owed to providers, it

         12  is rather confusing. And let me also notice that,

         13  again, as the Chair, Member DeBlasio mentioned, as

         14  soon as you read the first bullet, you're, in all

         15  likelihood, you probably would put it down, because

         16  you probably, in all likelihood, are satisfied with

         17  your provider.

         18                 Let me also say that it also sends a

         19  message to parents. It really sets up an adversarial

         20  position where basically parents who we really want

         21  to empower are basically are put in the position of

         22  getting increased rates for providers. And, so, I

         23  have a really serious concern about how the agency

         24  has shifted the burden now to parents to apply for

         25  this increase.

                                                            84

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2                 So, I have a suggestion and you,

          3  again, offered, you made an appeal for some

          4  suggestions, the suggestions should be, and it

          5  should be really a simplified bullet, and it should

          6  read something like, you know, effective April 1st

          7  there have been an increase in market rates for

          8  providers. I would urge that you would work with

          9  your provider to apply for this increased rate.

         10  Period, end of discussion.

         11                 Let me also ask a question. And the

         12  fact that it says fact sheet as opposed to

         13  notification on increased rates is also very

         14  disturbing. Have you sent this notice to providers?

         15  And if so, how many providers have you sent this

         16  notice to? And if not, why not?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         18  we've sent -- first of all, going back to your

         19  shifting the burden, I don't think we're shifting

         20  the burden to parents. Our process has always

         21  worked, as I said earlier, with parents.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me ask you.

         23  So, in the past parents have always been in a

         24  position to apply for increased rate for providers?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That's been the

          3  procedure?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That has been

          6  the procedure, okay.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: And just

          8  to your question, we sent the fact sheet to over

          9  24,000, 24,501 providers. Not this. There was a

         10  separate fact sheet geared toward providers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The fifth

         12  bullet says, this information, your providers are

         13  being notified separately of this information. So, a

         14  separate form all together?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Similar

         16  form with a similar information, which we can share

         17  with you, was sent to providers. But, yes, we did

         18  that.  At the same time we sent this to over 30,000

         19  parents, we sent it to over 24,000 providers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me, again,

         21  ask you about the process. In the event that a

         22  parent fails to apply for this increased rate, can a

         23  provider separately and independently apply for this

         24  increased rate? Yes or no?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The
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          2  provider and the parent can submit the form

          3  together. There's a one-page form that requires both

          4  of their signatures, and then either the parent or

          5  the provider can send it in, but both of them need

          6  to work together to submit it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. So, from

          8  your question, or from your answer, the answer that

          9  you gave was only, they could only do it jointly,

         10  and the provider could not do it individually. Yes?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Again,

         12  we pay on behalf of the parents. So, we want the

         13  parents to be involved in the decision to pay the

         14  provider. So, it needs to be a joint decision -- not

         15  a joint decision, but a joint application to let us

         16  know that the rates have increased, and then we will

         17  pay the increased rate, if it's appropriate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So the answer

         19  to the question was, no, a provider cannot apply for

         20  this increased rate by themselves, yes?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Jointly

         22  with parents.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Jointly.

         24                 And let me ask you this question. If

         25  a provider has a question or a concern with regard
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          2  to the rate, is there any due process, is there any

          3  remedy, is there any legal procedure, any hearing

          4  that they could attend to challenge any decision?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

          6  before we get into challenging decisions and court

          7  processes, we have a --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Or

          9  administrative processes.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Or

         11  administrative, any kind of process --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Formal

         14  process like that, we do have a system set up to try

         15  and address concerns by parents or providers about

         16  any kind of payment issues. There are hot lines,

         17  ability for people to mail in complaints or to walk

         18  into our offices to try and get those kinds of

         19  issues addressed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Can you walk us

         21  through this system?

         22                 I'm a provider. I've been notified

         23  that my rate has been denied, what should I do?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         25  the first thing we would hope is that you would try
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          2  and submit additional material if that's what the

          3  problem was, in terms we didn't have sufficient

          4  material to be able to grant the increase that we

          5  would try and do that, if you had a question about

          6  what you could submit, you could call us so we would

          7  work with you to make sure that you were submitting

          8  the material that we need.

          9                 Assuming you got that, and it

         10  satisfies the requirements, it shouldn't be an issue

         11  and we would certainly approve it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I have just

         13  been given a notice that the fact sheet that was

         14  mailed to the providers, and in it the first bullet

         15  basically says that the parent and the parent alone

         16  is the only one who can submit information to HRA.

         17  And I'll read it to you.

         18                 "Any requests for an increase must be

         19  submitted to HRA by the parent of the child you are

         20  caring for and must be in accordance with New York

         21  State regulations."

         22                 At no point on this form the word

         23  "jointly" does not appear.

         24                 First let me say to the audience, I

         25  really thank you for the applause, but I have a
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          2  number of questions and you're really taking up time

          3  and I've got to run. So, thank you.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

          5  the form the parents need to submit, and we talked

          6  about that went out with the mailing that went to

          7  parents is something that's something that's signed

          8  by the provider and the parent.

          9                 As I said before, our increased and

         10  our child care relationship is with the parent and

         11  we pay providers on behalf of the parent.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But you also

         13  have a relationship with the provider. I mean, you

         14  regulate them. You pay them. And there are some

         15  other administrative duties that you have in

         16  relation to the provider, so you do have a

         17  relationship with providers, yes?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Really

         19  on behalf of parents though. Our relationship was

         20  with the parent and we pay the provider that they

         21  select, the one that they feel best meets their

         22  needs, we don't have a direct relationship with the

         23  providers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So at no point

         25  in time you have no relationship, and you're not in
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          2  consultation with the providers at all? You don't

          3  regulate them? You don't inspect them? Nothing?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Again,

          5  we pay them on behalf of the parent. But our child

          6  care relationship is primarily with the parent and

          7  we pay the providers and have interaction with the

          8  providers if they have questions on behalf of a

          9  parent.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me ask you

         11  a little bit about the administrative fees.

         12                 I've just recently, this morning, in

         13  fact, my neighbor who is a provider gave me a copy

         14  of her check. $17.06 was deducted from her check for

         15  administrative fees, and that reduces obviously her

         16  check. Why did the City stop paying a portion of the

         17  network administrative fees?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: That's

         19  actually a question for my side.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, back to

         21  Mr. Chaudry.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: This

         23  relates to family child care.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: All right.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: These
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          2  are regulated providers, and family child care is an

          3  essential service to provide safe care in a small

          4  home setting.

          5                 We, and this issue has come up

          6  before, last year we provided an overall increase in

          7  family child care of about 4.5 million, all of which

          8  went to providers. As part of that increase, what

          9  was happening before, to explain, it was a movement

         10  towards trying to get parity in the payments, so

         11  what was happening before was that parents who were

         12  -- providers who were on the contracted side of

         13  family care, okay, there's contracts and there's

         14  vouchers, were getting paid less, and we were

         15  spending less on those services than were the

         16  vouchers. In fact, since we're trying to encourage

         17  the contracted system and a mix of contract

         18  vouchers, we wanted to make sure that the City

         19  charged the same -- I mean, the City paid the same

         20  for both.

         21                 As part of being part of a network

         22  which provides administrative services, helps

         23  separates the quality of programs, inspects

         24  services, they charge an administrative fee of $17.

         25  Our payments for family child care contract go to
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          2  the network, and the network reduces that amount by

          3  the amount of the payment. The networks have always

          4  received $17.06 for their work. It appears that now

          5  that that's being reflected in the actual payment

          6  that they're receiving, but no family child care

          7  provider as part of this should have seen a decrease

          8  in what they got paid. And in fact, most of the

          9  increase, we tried to funnel most of the increase to

         10  the infant and toddler rates, and actually when we

         11  had the advantage of the market rate increasing in

         12  October, it increased for infants and toddlers, and

         13  we sort of immediately implemented that increase for

         14  all contracted providers in our system for family

         15  child care.

         16                 We went ahead and we did it from the

         17  day that the increase went up.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: We'll have a

         19  discussion about this off line, because I'm

         20  confused.

         21                 Let's go back to Mr. Diamond.

         22                 Mr. Diamond, so back to the fact

         23  sheet, again, the word jointly does not appear on

         24  this fact sheet. So, the question that I have is,

         25  what recourse to providers have, if any?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, as

          3  I said before --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The hot line.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Right.

          6  There's a number of ways we try and deal with issues

          7  that come up with providers.

          8                 If none of that works, the parent is

          9  free to ask for a fair hearing through HRA's

         10  administrative process, and some people have done

         11  that and that will be adjudicated independently by

         12  the State system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, since you

         14  have already agreed to change the fact sheet, which

         15  really should be a notification sheet regarding the

         16  rate increase, will that fact sheet now be mailed to

         17  providers and parents? The new fact sheet, the

         18  revised fact sheet?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Just to

         20  clarify, I think what I agreed to, I said that we

         21  would agree to look at suggestions that were

         22  submitted from interested groups and to see if there

         23  was a better way to communicate this. If there is

         24  then we haven't discussed how to do that. We haven't

         25  committed to doing anything yet or any particular
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          2  change, because again, one of the challenges you're

          3  dealing with this area is building in the

          4  regulations and making sure that the form is legally

          5  accurate, balancing that with making it as clear as

          6  possible.

          7                 So, we have to make sure that any

          8  communication we have satisfies both standards. But

          9  we'll be happy to entertain any suggestions, to look

         10  at them if there's a better way to communicate, we

         11  certainly will.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But in terms of

         13  balancing the interest of providers and parents, and

         14  determining whether or not it's clear, it's obvious

         15  to me that it's not clear, and it sends a message to

         16  parents that if in fact you can only -- it really

         17  sets up an adversarial situation between providers

         18  and parents and suggests to me that the purpose of

         19  this fact sheet is only to change a provider, not

         20  for the purposes of getting a rate increase.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         22  that wasn't our intention.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I recognize

         24  that. Which is why I would think you should perhaps

         25  take into consideration again just one bullet which
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          2  basically says there's been a rate increase

          3  effective a certain date, fill out the information

          4  with your provider jointly, and send it in.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

          6  think there's a little more to it than that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, you can

          8  include a bullet with regards to the chart. That's

          9  fine.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: And

         11  people have to submit certain documentation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But why is it

         13  necessary to notify them if they can change their

         14  provider?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         16  because this is a system where parents are free to

         17  choose their provider that best meets their needs.

         18  It may be that a parent with an increased rate may

         19  want to make a different child care choice. You want

         20  to leave that option open to parents.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But they can

         22  change their provider at any point in time, why

         23  should it be related to a rate increase?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Because

         25  with more money available to them, they may want to
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          2  make a different child care decision than they made

          3  before they had more money available.

          4                 They should know that that's an

          5  option. They may not want to, and it certainly would

          6  be best to have stable child care, if that works for

          7  them.

          8                 But if they want to avail themselves

          9  of different options now that they have more money

         10  available to them, they should know that too.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But don't you

         12  think they already know that they have an option to

         13  change their provider if they're not happy?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: They may

         15  not realize, though, that they have more money also

         16  to spend on child care.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But it's two

         18  different messages.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         20  it's leaving the parent with the power to choose the

         21  provider that best meets their needs. That's our

         22  goal.

         23                 We want to let parents know what's

         24  available to them, what the resources are, how much

         25  money they have available, and then let them make
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          2  the child care choice that meets their needs and

          3  their children's needs. If it's with the current

          4  provider, by all means, they can continue to do

          5  that. If it's a new provider, they should do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I support

          7  you in that, but, again, I don't believe that the

          8  increased, the notification with regard to the

          9  increased rate should be clear.

         10                 The option with regards to changing a

         11  provider should be clear and should be separate and

         12  apart, and they shouldn't be mixed together.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         14  what we're trying to tell parents is that the money

         15  that the City can pay on their behalf has increased.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Period.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: And they

         18  now have the ability to make whatever child care

         19  decision they think best meets their needs.

         20                 If they want to stay with their

         21  current provider and their provider has charged

         22  more, we will pay for that. If using this increased

         23  money they want to find a different provider, they

         24  can do that. That's not a choice we feel we can

         25  dictate. We want to leave that open to the parents
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          2  and give them all the options to make the choice

          3  that meets their family's needs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Diamond,

          5  again, my suggestion, my humble suggestion is again

          6  that it should be a notification on a rate increase,

          7  one.

          8                 Two, it should be done jointly with

          9  the providers.

         10                 Three, that if, in fact, they would

         11  like to change their provider, for whatever reason,

         12  they have that option to do so. Very simple. Thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 Okay, we have one more member who has

         17  a question. I have a quick follow-up at the end and

         18  then we will be finished with this panel.

         19                 The last member with a question is

         20  Council Member Tom White.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 I'll make mine very short.

         24                 You have 25,000 parents, and 24,500

         25  providers. You send out notices to both. Is there

                                                            99

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  any tracking mechanism that you had that would

          3  relate to how many returns you got back to your

          4  notification?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Just to

          6  be clear on the numbers, it was 31,000 parents and

          7  24,000.

          8                 Well, as people come back, we will

          9  certainly track them. And we've started to get some

         10  of the returns, you know, fairly quickly we started

         11  to get, and we started to get some calls to our hot

         12  line, so we are tracking that. And we will track

         13  certainly how many people return the material, and

         14  how many rate increases were given.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

         16                 In the info line and submitting for

         17  the increase, if there are errors, let's say I

         18  submitted it in March, March 1st, and there are

         19  errors and you have to send me a notice, or do you

         20  notify me to send in additional information?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         22  we'll send the letter when we get the initial

         23  increase to let people know that we're received it.

         24  And then should there be a request for more

         25  information, or something that we are unclear about,
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          2  we'll send a letter to that effect, and when the

          3  rate is processed, when we finish the evaluation and

          4  we're ready to say what the new rate is, we'll send

          5  a letter for that purpose, too.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And that rate,

          7  whatever it should be, would be from the first date

          8  that you receive the notice from me, even though it

          9  was not complete? Or is it considered complete after

         10  you get the additional information. Because I might

         11  have made an error, all right? A little small error,

         12  or a big error, it doesn't make any difference, but

         13  it clocked in on March 1st, and you go back and

         14  forth, you don't get the information back until

         15  March the 20th, what happens to that first date of

         16  submission?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         18  the rate increase takes effect the month after we

         19  approve it. So, in the example you gave, it would

         20  still be April 1st. But once we get a complete

         21  package, we will consider that complete and we will

         22  give the increase to the month after that happens,

         23  even if it takes us a little time to officially put

         24  that into the system.

         25                 So, we will try and protect providers
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          2  so that from the date we submit the information that

          3  we need, we will consider it complete, even if it

          4  takes us some additional time to actually process

          5  it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, very

          7  good.

          8                 Now, in terms of when this first went

          9  into effect, I believe it was October of last year?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Until now,

         12  we're talking about a six-month period. And in terms

         13  of the amount of money that has not been expended up

         14  to this date, what happens to those revenues.

         15  Because everybody is not getting the benefit, you

         16  know, the notices are going out, let's say by

         17  according to your example, March 1st, so we got six

         18  months worth of revenue that has not been

         19  distributed to the providers based on the

         20  notification going out six months later.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Okay,

         22  well, the money available to this City for child

         23  care, did not increase as a result of the market

         24  rate. The City has essentially had the same money

         25  last year to this year, I believe, so there was not
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          2  new money attached to this. And the City is using a

          3  lot of child care money already. In fact, that's one

          4  of the concerns that we all have is, or that the

          5  budget office has is how much money we're using and

          6  how we're going to pay for the increased cost of

          7  child care. But there was not new money attached to

          8  this, so it's not a revenue stream that was not

          9  tapped or something like that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: You're talking

         11  about on the City side?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: What about on

         14  the State side? And on the federal side?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: The

         16  State and federal government do not provide any

         17  increased funding when they increase the market

         18  rate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: It's the same

         20  as it was before?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

         22  And you have to do, like I said before, you have to

         23  do more with less.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Okay,

         25  thank you very much.

                                                            103

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          3  Council member.

          4                 Finally, I'd like to just ask two

          5  questions of the Department of Health. We've heard

          6  from a -- switch the chairs here.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We've heard

          9  from a number of providers that they've had long

         10  waits when they apply to register, to change

         11  registration, to renew registration, et cetera; how

         12  long does it typically take to process an

         13  application for registration or for a change or

         14  renewal?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO:

         16  Frank Rochielo (phonetic) of Day Care, Assistant

         17  Commissioner.

         18                 We are required to process a new

         19  renewal application within a six-month time period.

         20  I'm very happy to report that our overdue renewal

         21  rate is down from 34 percent, overdue down to 5.7

         22  percent as of yesterday.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You say 5.7

         24  percent?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO: 5.7
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          2  percent. It represents approximately 2,800 overdue

          3  renewals that we've processed in the past year.

          4                 So, to answer your question directly,

          5  it's six-month period. We're much more on top of it

          6  than we have been in the past. So, the provider

          7  should be experiencing much less wait times.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And, again, in

          9  the interest, as I said in the beginning, of

         10  increasing the supply of child care as a constant

         11  mission for all of us, I'm presuming, even though

         12  you have a six-month time frame, the ideal is to

         13  make the processing as quick as possible.

         14                 What is the average amount of time

         15  it's taking to process each of these requests?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO:

         17  Well, on the renewal side, of course, that's been

         18  dropping as we come into line to where we need to

         19  be.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Speak up a

         21  little bit. I'm sorry.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO:

         23  Sure. On the renewal side, that's been dropping, the

         24  average time frame, as we come into line to where we

         25  need to be, which is, and it's our goal to be at
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          2  zero percent there.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have an

          4  average time now, in terms of your management model?

          5  Do you have an average time it takes?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO:

          7  Right now it is probably taking us about seven and a

          8  half to eight months to process an application. And

          9  that's not across the board.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROCHIELO: But

         12  that is for some renewal application.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Is it lack of

         14  personnel? I mean, what is it -- that's an awfully

         15  long time for something as relatively simple as, you

         16  know, an individual applying to provide this

         17  service.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right.

         19  Again, we have a six-month period to renew someone.

         20  What we run into, though, are new staff members at

         21  our group family day cares, and we're not finding

         22  out about them until the five-month period,

         23  six-month period, and that's where a provider might

         24  say, you know, I have someone new as an assistant,

         25  well, that assistant has to be cleared. We need
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          2  fingerprint clearances done, we need criminal

          3  background checks done. That adds a month or two to

          4  each application.

          5                 We, in an attempt to increase

          6  capacity now, are starting an orientation training

          7  for new applicants, to walk them through the

          8  application process.

          9                 For new applicants, our rate of

         10  approval is at 34 percent at this point in time.

         11  It's up from 20 percent about a year ago. It's our

         12  goal this year to hit 50 percent, which speaks

         13  directly to capacity.

         14                 We believe that the orientation

         15  training that we're about to implement will assist

         16  providers in providing us with the documentation

         17  that we need in a more timely manner, and thereby

         18  improving our timeliness in processing them to

         19  assist them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We will

         21  certainly follow-up with you on this, because I

         22  think it's crucial. I'm glad you're doing that. I

         23  think it's crucial in terms of the personnel you

         24  devote and everything else. You know, I think it's a

         25  real disincentive to people who provide child care
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          2  to have that long a process, and the more we can

          3  streamline it, again, in light of all the other

          4  efforts being made to integrate services and

          5  streamline government, the better. But we will

          6  follow up with you on that.

          7                 And lastly, in terms of the

          8  inspectors, and we talked about this issue in a

          9  number of our hearings, I know you were at some of

         10  them, at one point I believe you had 52 staff lines

         11  for inspectors and there's a question of how many of

         12  them would be filled, and there were some concerns

         13  about filling those lines. Where are you today in

         14  terms of having those lines filled?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAUDRY: Right. I

         16  believe I last testified that we had 25 vacancies.

         17  We currently have nine, so we've made a lot of

         18  progress since the last hearing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Great. I'm very

         20  happy to hear that.

         21                 Okay, by way of conclusion, let me

         22  thank this panel. But let me also say, look, I think

         23  we've made clear our concerns about communication

         24  with providers and with parents and with

         25  particularly trying to create a dynamic where
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          2  everyone who deserves the market rate increase is

          3  getting it as quickly as possible, that's for the

          4  greater good of New York City and the kids we're

          5  serving. And the other point is that we have as

          6  clear and quick a resolution process for any type of

          7  disagreement, any type of dispute, to make sure that

          8  if there is any question about how much money

          9  someone is owed, or whether they're handling the

         10  service properly, that there's a very clear formal,

         11  you know, very easily understood process, and I'll

         12  obviously direct this to Deputy Commissioner

         13  Diamond, so that these disputes can be resolved, and

         14  the providers who are doing the right thing would

         15  get the payments they are due on a very timely

         16  basis.

         17                 I think that's the two things we've

         18  been essentially concerned about today. We will be

         19  following up with all the agencies, in particular

         20  HRA, and we certainly will make sure, Deputy

         21  Commissioner Diamond, that if providers have ideas

         22  on how to improve communication, that those get to

         23  you, and we're going to then be pleasantly insistent

         24  to hear what you think of them and to see if we can

         25  do some additional formal communication to improve
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          2  the process.

          3                 So, thank you very much to this

          4  panel.

          5                 Okay, our next panel. Let me just see

          6  if our next panel is ready. Is our next panel ready.

          7  Providers. Okay, we're going to go to a panel of

          8  four providers, Nila Edwards, Bridget Carruth,

          9  Cheryl Eperson and Jacqueline Brooks. I'm sorry,

         10  it's providers and one parent.

         11                 Okay, please take your seats and

         12  let's see who would like to begin. Who would like to

         13  begin? All right, as you testify, please introduce

         14  yourself for the full record. We welcome your

         15  testimony.

         16                 You need the light to be on there.

         17  Push that red button.

         18                 MS. BOONE: I'd like to first thank

         19  the panel of Council people for inviting us and

         20  letting us have this time to make our point of view.

         21                 My name is Pat Boone, and I am

         22  President of New York ACORN. I'm a parent, but I'm

         23  also a provider, and I'm here with our providers to

         24  let you know that in New York ACORN has 25,000

         25  low-income family members in the City of New York.
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          2  Our members include welfare recipients and

          3  low-income working families, who send their children

          4  to home day care providers.

          5                 Our members are among the 40,000

          6  low-income working families on waiting lists for

          7  vouchers, and our members are among the 30,000 home

          8  day care providers that live in the City of New

          9  York.

         10                 Being low-income families, we know

         11  what it's like to be on endless waiting lists, and

         12  we also know what it's like to have to deal with

         13  City agents that are not supportive.

         14                 Today I am here representing the

         15  parents of providers and providers themselves.

         16                 We have teamed up with United

         17  Federation of Teachers to organize a union of

         18  providers while working with parents to ensure that

         19  the maximum number of child care slots get created

         20  for low-income families.

         21                 What we have seen in these past nine

         22  months is frightening, especially for hearing what

         23  we've heard today. Providers make minimum wage or

         24  less and have no vacation days, health insurance or

         25  sick days. Providers have to take money out of their
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          2  own pocket to make sure the children have adequate

          3  food or supplies in their homes.

          4                 When a parent forgets to fill out

          5  their paperwork the provider is penalized by having

          6  to watch that parent's child and then not get paid.

          7                 If a parent loses their voucher and

          8  does not tell the provider, the provider does not

          9  get paid.

         10                 If a provider tries to complain about

         11  this to HRA, HRA tells the provider that they look

         12  out for the parent, not the provider.

         13                 If you have a dispute, take it up

         14  with the parent, but we're not paying.

         15                 If the providers sent in paperwork

         16  that HRA lost, HRA can say, and they do, that they

         17  are not entitled to any more money, and that this is

         18  the end of the story.

         19                 I could go on and on, but the bottom

         20  line is we have a problem, which is that we don't

         21  have anyone to talk to at this time. We are taking

         22  care of over 100,000 children in the City of New

         23  York and we have no support.

         24                 We are taking care of over 100,000

         25  children in the City of New York, and we are making
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          2  minimum wage with no benefits whatsoever.

          3                 We are taking care of 100,000

          4  children in the City of New York, and there is no

          5  process at this time to resolve disputes for any of

          6  us, we, the providers. This doesn't work. And we are

          7  therefore here thankful for this opportunity to ask

          8  the Councilpeople here for your support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Boone.

         11                 As always, Ms. Boone, your argument

         12  is eloquent, and we thank you for that.

         13                 Who else would like to testify?

         14                 MS. EDWARDS: Good afternoon. And Mr.

         15  DeBlasio, I would just like to say thank you very,

         16  very much.

         17                 My name is Nila Edwards. I've been a

         18  provider for eight years. I work in Brooklyn, and

         19  before I became a provider, I worked for the

         20  Department of Education, as an assistant placement

         21  officer with the Committee on Special Education.

         22                 I worked with children because I love

         23  children. I have four children of my own that I've

         24  raised and gone through the public school system and

         25  through day care and providers, and I worked with
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          2  children, I tried to nurture them and give them all

          3  that I have. I do this because I love the children.

          4                 The parents that I deal with, my

          5  parents, my facility provide the care for them that

          6  they may not be able to afford at other day care

          7  centers, and I worked 11 hours a day. I have

          8  expenses that I have to pay. By the time I pay my

          9  expenses, pay my assistant, I end up making about

         10  $19,000 a year, okay? And when I heard from ACORN

         11  and UFT about our rate, the rate increases, which is

         12  how I heard about them, not from HRA, not from ACS,

         13  it was through ACORN and UFT that I heard about the

         14  raises.

         15                 I just recently received a letter not

         16  quite two weeks ago from HRA explaining about our

         17  rate increase. The letter said that the parent would

         18  have to put in this increase for me, and I was like,

         19  I was in shock. I was like why? I will never get my

         20  increase. And that's not to say that the parents

         21  would not do it, okay? I'm not parent bashing. The

         22  parents are the reasons why we get this income, but

         23  I know my parents are busy. The gentleman said about

         24  the parents coming in and us filling out a form, we

         25  don't have time for that in the mornings. We're
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          2  there for you to get your child and for you to get

          3  to work.

          4                 At any rate, I got my letter two

          5  weeks ago, and it said we could not fill it out

          6  without the parent. I just got a notice saying that

          7  we were entitled to an increase. The letter for the

          8  increase went directly to the parent, okay? And when

          9  I took my letter and showed it to ACORN and to some

         10  of the UFT members, I said this is stating that we

         11  can get an increase, but how do we get this

         12  increase?

         13                 Eventually we found out that a letter

         14  was sent to the parent because parents were calling

         15  different providers saying, oh, I don't want to

         16  change my day care. I like you, I don't want to

         17  change, but HRA said I have to change my day care,

         18  because the letter that was sent said provider

         19  information changed the request, it did not say

         20  anything about a rate increase.

         21                 And, so, I'm here today just to state

         22  that, to say why can't we be recognized? It's like

         23  me asking your boss to give you a raise. Yes, the

         24  parent should have some input, but so should we. It

         25  should be a collaboration together.
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          2                 Someone up there, I think it was you,

          3  Mr. DeBlasio, brought out the point why don't we

          4  have any input on these letters that are being sent

          5  out? Why suggest that the parent have to do this?

          6                 Parents don't have time for this.

          7  Most of them don't, okay? And thank God we have a

          8  parent here today, so, you'll get some information.

          9                 At any rate, I think that's the end

         10  of my testimony. So...

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         12  again, Ms. Edwards. We appreciate it.

         13                 Who would like to go next?

         14                 MS. SANTIAGO: Good afternoon. My name

         15  is Serina Santiago. My almost six-year-old son

         16  Brandon has been attending Anna Vinardel's home day

         17  care center since he was two years old. It has been

         18  a great experience both for me as a mother and for

         19  Brandon. He always receives the best care from

         20  nutritious meals to great learning experiences.

         21                 I am 100 percent comfortable when I

         22  leave him with Anna and her staff. I never worry

         23  about him.

         24                 For the first two years, Anna was

         25  paid on time, then all of a sudden she was not paid
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          2  for six months. My status never changed. I was never

          3  told that I was no longer eligible for child care.

          4                 Then all of a sudden last year she

          5  started getting payments again, not for the missing

          6  six months. I think this is very unfair and I think

          7  HRA should have notified me if there was a change so

          8  that I could have told Anna and I would not have

          9  brought my son there if I knew she would not get

         10  paid.

         11                 I want to do anything I can to help

         12  Anna. When I received the letter from HRA about the

         13  market rate, I thought that it meant that if I was

         14  happy with my provider, to disregard the letter. So,

         15  I did. I am sorry I did that.

         16                 When I heard that I could have

         17  applied to help her get the increase that she

         18  deserves to cover her cost, I wanted to be here

         19  today to help her and a lot of other providers do

         20  the same.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, Ms.

         22  Santiago, I want to thank you, because as you know,

         23  in a perfect world, the most important testimony

         24  here today would be from the children who receive

         25  the service and that's not possible, but to hear
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          2  from a parent is so important to understand exactly

          3  what this is doing to people, and how, you know,

          4  you've experienced it. And the whole system should

          5  be about how do we help people to achieve this goal,

          6  not how do we stand in the way or how do we ignore

          7  the problems they're experiencing.

          8                 This is very moving to me that you

          9  feel so strongly about the person providing the

         10  service and you feel so comfortable with your child

         11  being there.

         12                 And the idea that someone would not

         13  be paid and then not only is there no notification,

         14  but there's no effort to sort of fix it by the

         15  agency, you'd think people at the agency would be

         16  trained to look for opportunities to make sure

         17  everyone who is owed money to get it. Because Lord

         18  knows, if the taxpayer were here, you know, you're

         19  getting a great bargain.

         20                 MS. SANTIAGO: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Every dollar we

         22  spend on child care is one of the best dollars we

         23  spend in public life, because no one here is getting

         24  rich, and everyone is providing a very fine service.

         25                 So, it's sad to me that the way
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          2  you've experienced this is that when a problem

          3  occurred you had to sort of fight to try and get it

          4  resolved, as opposed to people saying how can we

          5  help you to fix this problem. And I agree with you

          6  about the form. I could have seen myself or anyone

          7  else reading that form the same way. I'm glad we

          8  have a real live parent to say that, and I

          9  appreciate that very much.

         10                 MS. SANTIAGO: You're welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, who would

         12  like to testify next?

         13                 MS. BROOKS: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Jacqueline Brooks, and I'm a family day care

         15  provider. I have been a provider for four years, and

         16  I am paid through both HRA and ACS.

         17                 I do this work because it's my

         18  calling. I love this work, and I see how the

         19  children love to be here.

         20                 I know they are receiving a lot from

         21  me. A parent can come in to me asking if I can take

         22  their children, and I have a waiting list.

         23                 In September of 2004, I applied for a

         24  group license so I could provide more child care

         25  slots for those of my visiting -- on my waiting
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          2  list.

          3                 The original person I spoke to at DOH

          4  license office said this would be smooth sailing,

          5  one, two, three, because all of the fingerprinting

          6  and paperwork was in order.

          7                 That December I was told everything

          8  looked good. They were waiting for clearance. For

          9  six months I called the office to follow-up. Then

         10  this past summer I received a letter and a call from

         11  someone at the Health Department who said they were

         12  now in charge of my case.

         13                 It was like starting all over again.

         14  I had to wait so long that my daughter turned 18

         15  during that time. So, she had to be fingerprinted. I

         16  have now brought fingerprints and SCR clearance

         17  results down to the office seven times. My case is

         18  not an unusual case. These license in waiting happen

         19  to hundreds of providers who want to become licensed

         20  or change from family day care to group family day

         21  care.

         22                 This delay cost us much needed child

         23  care slots. I still do not have my group family day

         24  care license, and my parents and their children are

         25  still waiting.
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          2                 Something must be done to support the

          3  providers who are doing this work, and to help

          4  families receive quality care that they want for

          5  their children.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 We appreciate your testimony. And I

         10  guess the last testimony is Ms. Carruth? Yes?

         11  Please.

         12                 MS. EPERSON: Eperson.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm sorry, we

         14  also have testimony from Ms. Carruth?

         15                 MS. EPERSON: Eperson and then

         16  Carruth.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Oh, Eperson and

         18  then Carruth. My apology. So many people want to

         19  testify.

         20                 That microphone can move closer to

         21  you. Thank you very much.

         22                 MS. EPERSON: Good afternoon. My name

         23  is Cheryl Eperson, and I've been a home day care

         24  provider in Queens for about 17 years.

         25                 I'm having difficulty making ends
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          2  meet, because my payments don't come in on a timely

          3  fashion.

          4                 My payments have been processed

          5  incorrectly, or not at all.

          6                 For example, I was never paid for

          7  work that I did in the summer. In spite of having

          8  filled out the forms twice.

          9                 In September I sent them in again and

         10  when I finally reached someone in December, they

         11  told me it was too late to receive this money.

         12                 The other reason why I have

         13  difficulty making ends meet is because we are paid a

         14  pittance. We're not making enough money to cover our

         15  costs. Right now Con Edison is waiting to shut off

         16  my electricity.

         17                 If I was not part of the UFT ACORN

         18  Organizing Campaign, I would not have known about

         19  the market rate increase. My costs have gone up and

         20  I want to raise my rates.

         21                 Last week, finally, two parents

         22  brought in the letter that they received from the

         23  City to me, and because they didn't understand what

         24  it was for or what they needed to do. When I saw it,

         25  I thought it must have been an error and that it
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          2  went to the parents by mistake, and that instead it

          3  should have come to the school for me.

          4                 I think that was a miscarriage for

          5  justice. If we are providing a service to the

          6  parents and to the City, we deserve to be able to

          7  set our rates, and we should have received the

          8  letter in the fall.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Eperson. You know, I appreciate the way you said

         11  that, because you would think on that form that

         12  there would be something in big bold letters that

         13  says, you know, bring this form to your provider. At

         14  minimum you would think that would say, you know,

         15  that that's the one thing you have to do to start

         16  the process. And we all, obviously, don't agree with

         17  the way it's even being structured that it goes to

         18  the parent. But at least you'd think it would say,

         19  you know, you must show this form to your provider

         20  so it doesn't end up going in a pile somewhere and

         21  someone loses an opportunity.

         22                 MS. EPERSON: Or upsetting the

         23  provider by telling him he needs to change

         24  something.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

                                                            123

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2                 MS. EPERSON: Because most of them, it

          3  says a request for a change, so that has nothing to

          4  do with money. That has to do with you being upset

          5  with somebody that's doing something.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, it's

          7  confusing, too, what the actual topic is.

          8                 And the other thing is, even though I

          9  appreciate they do put in a number for a help line,

         10  that number doesn't jump off the page.

         11                 And, again, you see this with, you

         12  know, any kind of company out the private sector,

         13  when they want you to call their 800 number, they

         14  put it everywhere, you know? They're probably not

         15  doing it because they love you so much, they're

         16  probably doing it because they think if you feel

         17  you're getting a good service, you'll stick with

         18  them or maybe you'll buy more of what they're

         19  selling, whatever. They make it really easy to

         20  figure out how to do it.

         21                 So, what's clear here is, if they

         22  wanted a user-friendly form, you know, it would be

         23  very clear that you have to show it to the provider.

         24  It would be very clear where to call if you have any

         25  questions. And if you called that number, there
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          2  would be someone who is like, here is how we will

          3  help you get this form right. Everything would be

          4  about how do we get to the positive solution, as

          5  opposed to a form which, I don't think you have to

          6  believe in conspiracy theories to say a form that

          7  might be structured to make sure that people don't

          8  follow through on it.

          9                 MS. EPERSON: That's for sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         11                 Ms. Carruth.

         12                 MS. CARRUTH: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Bridget Carruth. I live in the Bronx, and I have

         14  been a family day care provider for 15 years. I love

         15  my job. I love to work with children, and I take the

         16  education and care of our children very seriously.

         17                 I believe that I should be

         18  compensated for a hard day's work. Over the past six

         19  months, we have held meetings with thousands of

         20  providers. Hundreds of providers tell us stories

         21  about money that they are owed for work that they

         22  did.

         23                 In many cases like my case, we work

         24  with children who we thought had HRA approval but

         25  later found out that the parents lost eligibility.
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          2                 Neither the parents nor HRA informed

          3  us about the change, and we continued to see the

          4  child.

          5                 In some cases the parents win the

          6  fair hearing, but we never see any back money.

          7                 Many providers simply give up on

          8  recovering the pack pay that is owed to them. I

          9  never will. The process does not work.

         10                 If we are lucky enough to get through

         11  to the HRA hot line, or can take time from work to

         12  visit the HRA offices, we deal with staff people who

         13  are totally disinterested in our situation. So, a

         14  bureaucrat makes a decision without a chance for us

         15  to appeal it.

         16                 When there are license disputes there

         17  is a fair hearing process that the State has set up.

         18  There is no such process for payment disputes.

         19  Recently, we gave a list of 25 back pay cases to

         20  HRA. Many of us got back a form letter saying "case

         21  denied."

         22                 When I asked at a meeting what the

         23  next step was, I was told there isn't one. We want

         24  our chance to lay out our case, and to show our

         25  documents that support our claims.
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          2                 We know we might not always win, but

          3  we want a chance to talk to an impartial decision

          4  maker. It is very hard to stay in business when you

          5  aren't paid.

          6                 So, to sum up what we all have been

          7  saying, providers work at one of the most important

          8  jobs in this City, educating and caring for our

          9  youngest children. This work needs to be valued.

         10                 One, we need a dispute resolution

         11  process. We need a bureaucracy that works for us.

         12  And we need a chance to apply for the market rate

         13  increase to cover our increased cost.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you to

         16  this panel. Let me first say that your testimony

         17  here was extremely helpful, because I think you're

         18  laying out the real-life dynamics very, very

         19  clearly.

         20                 I want to thank all of you for the

         21  commitment you're showing in being here, the work

         22  you do every day, and I think you're asking for

         23  simple justice here in how you're treated, and

         24  obviously respect.

         25                 You know, again, we don't want people
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          2  paying lip service to how important it is to take

          3  care of their children.

          4                 President Weingarten has joined us

          5  and will be coming up in a moment, and I'll just

          6  rephrase one thing from the beginning of the

          7  hearing. It took a long time for this country to

          8  start to appreciate teachers, not attack teachers,

          9  we also need to appreciate child care workers and

         10  say if this is the most precious element of our

         11  society, our children, then not only do you say it's

         12  important to do child care work, you respect it, you

         13  support it, you pay what it's worth, you make it

         14  easier, not harder. And I think everything you have

         15  said in your testimony speaks to the fact that

         16  you're trying every day to do the right thing. And

         17  by the way, it's not easy to take care of kids to

         18  begin with. I can say that from personal experience.

         19  But you're asking for it to be made a little easier

         20  by being given consistency and communication and

         21  fairness.

         22                 Now, the thing I want to point out,

         23  too, is we need to take -- even know Commissioner

         24  Diamond of HRA did not exactly embrace the idea of

         25  getting helpful new ideas, we need to take him up on
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          2  the fact that he admitted that if those ideas were

          3  presented, that they might have to change the way

          4  they communicate.

          5                 I think it's crucial that the exact

          6  experiences we heard here be part of what allows us

          7  to form a different approach to what kind of letters

          8  should go out, how they instruct people, how clear

          9  they are. It should be a situation where if you all

         10  worked together with the folks who are organizing

         11  the union effort, and say, okay, we'll test this

         12  letter, and it makes sense to all of us. If it makes

         13  sense to all of you, it's going to make sense to

         14  everyone else, and then that's what should be

         15  presented to HRA as a better model of how to do

         16  business.

         17                 I would also say, finally, the people

         18  who are doing the processing work, the people you're

         19  dealing with when you have a problem and when you

         20  call up HRA, you know, I'd like us to all find ways

         21  to get them in the room with people actually

         22  providing the child care service, away from the

         23  workplace, where people might get back to their

         24  basic humanity, and the fact that they probably have

         25  a lot of experiences in common, and get those folks
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          2  to not see each case as a case and a problem and

          3  something to get rid of, but to say, hey, this is a

          4  human being trying to do something for a child. And

          5  maybe we can get a dialogue going that would cause

          6  the folks doing the processing to think a little

          7  differently and be enlightened about how they

          8  approach it.

          9                 But I just wanted to mention I think

         10  that would be helpful as well.

         11                 Thank you very much to everyone on

         12  this panel. We appreciate it.

         13                 And our final panel, President Randi

         14  Weingarten of UFT, and Michelle Boden. And Michelle,

         15  I don't know your title, but I know your good work.

         16                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Vice President for

         17  Elementary Schools.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Vice President

         19  for Elementary Schools of the UFT.

         20                 Give them a round of applause.

         21                 The statement is being passed out.

         22  Oh, yes, we have the testimony.

         23                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Michelle is our Vice

         24  President --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Is your
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          2  microphone on? We welcome you. And you have to

          3  formally introduce yourself.

          4                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Testing. Testing.

          5                 My alias, my name is Randi

          6  Weingarten. I'm President of the United Federation

          7  of Teachers, and next to me is Michelle Bodin, who

          8  is our Vice President for Elementary Education and

          9  also the officer in charge of the organizing effort

         10  for our home day care providers.

         11                 Of course, I have testimony that I am

         12  supposed to read, but I just want to say, and you

         13  know, it is a pretty intense sign of disrespect when

         14  you don't want to take forms from providers, you

         15  don't want to create a dispute resolution process

         16  for providers, you don't want to answer their phone

         17  calls, and then even when the City Council puts a

         18  hearing, you don't even bother to stay to listen to

         19  them at the hearing.

         20                 I mean, it's just -- and I think that

         21  that is the sense, even that simple, you know, cut

         22  and run situation that HRA did is what the providers

         23  feel all the time.

         24                 Now, you've heard a lot already, but

         25  I just want to do some very simple -- this is the
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          2  form that HRA has put together on this.

          3                 Now, HRA is a far bigger organization

          4  than the UFT. And you know, you have people who have

          5  gotten their degrees in how to do, you know, general

          6  welfare.

          7                 This is the form that our staff, in

          8  conjunction with some of the providers, put together

          9  in terms of asking for the rate increase.

         10                 I suspect that this form is a heck of

         11  a lot easier to read and to deal with, and Michelle

         12  will bring it up to you, than anything that they put

         13  together. And there is no reason why they could not

         14  use this form instead of the one that they use.

         15                 Like, the third bullet on their form

         16  says, "if based on these new rates you would like to

         17  change your provider, please contact HRA's info

         18  line."

         19                 Assuming you could actually get to

         20  the info line, but it says to me that this form is

         21  for applying for a different provider, not for

         22  paying your existing provider, and that's assuming

         23  you could actually get, as I said, to the Info Line.

         24                 And I love the fourth bullet. "If

         25  your current provider charges you more than HRA
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          2  pays, you should return the attached form with the

          3  documentation the provider gives you to explain why

          4  they increased their rate."

          5                 This does not, I mean, look, you

          6  know, I'm a lawyer as well as a school teacher, and

          7  lawyers are great at legalees, but even I couldn't

          8  figure out what this meant. It doesn't make it

          9  clear. There is an available subsidy increase. And

         10  even if you want to parents and said apply for it,

         11  instead of going to the providers, like every other

         12  county in the metropolitan area does and say, here

         13  providers, there's a rate increase, get it. Apply

         14  for it. That should be what they do.

         15                 It's pretty outrageous that the

         16  Deputy Commissioner won't do that, that the City of

         17  New York won't do that, when everybody else in the

         18  Metropolitan area does that. But even if you're

         19  going to ask parents to apply, why would you make

         20  the form so convoluted, so diffuse, so

         21  ununderstandable that who would know what they're

         22  doing? What's going on? And I'm wondering, where the

         23  heck is the money going to? Because the State has

         24  appropriated this market increase. The State

         25  Legislature and the Governor were really proud that
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          2  they increased the subsidy rate. So, where is the

          3  money going to when HRA makes it so hard for both

          4  parents to apply and won't even consider letting the

          5  providers who actually do the work apply for the

          6  vouchers?

          7                 Sorry. I guess I should read my

          8  testimony, but I'm not.

          9                 Look, it would be funny if this was,

         10  you know, a reality TV show and you could say this

         11  is someones, quote, stupid at the bureaucracy file,

         12  but what's real here is that, and there are

         13  providers here, look, child care providers in this

         14  City, earn an average of about $19,000 a year. Some

         15  earn as low as $10,000. They look after our most

         16  vulnerable population in the City of New York, our

         17  youngest kids, our most vulnerable population, our

         18  preschool population. That population of children

         19  that we want to give a great future to, we want to

         20  prepare, we want to help.

         21                 So, that's why I don't get this. This

         22  is really important from an economic point of view.

         23  You've got a Mayor who just started this whole new

         24  poverty committee with Jeff Canada and Rich, Dick

         25  Parsons, saying we have to upgrade, we have to focus
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          2  on helping people out of poverty. Here you have a

          3  situation where two agencies could easily help

          4  increase the market rate that's already available in

          5  law, and has done everything in its power not to do

          6  that. Both in terms of not allowing them to apply

          7  for the market rate, but also not allowing any kind

          8  of dispute process if there is a dispute about

          9  monies that have already been earned.

         10                 That's really the issue here. How do

         11  we cut through what seems to be this mindless

         12  bureaucracy and more and more what seems to be a

         13  hostility towards child care providers, how do we

         14  cut through that so that at least our current

         15  entitlement is gotten by people who have worked

         16  really, really hard on and with and for and

         17  supporting our most vulnerable population?

         18                 I could go on and on and on but I

         19  think you get my point. There are serious, serious

         20  problems here.

         21                 We have an agenda that we want to

         22  work on for the child care providers. You know we're

         23  working on the agenda at the same time as we are

         24  moving forward with the unionization of the

         25  providers. The State Senate just passed the bill
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          2  that would allow them to unionize. Now the next step

          3  is the Assembly and the Governor.

          4                 But here you have a group of people

          5  who are saying, I want to fight for my own destiny.

          6  I want to fight to make sure we get paid a living

          7  wage, we work together to do these things. I also

          8  want to have the best training I could have, and I

          9  also want to make sure that I provide the best

         10  services. That's the group of 30,000 or so people

         11  that we're trying to represent.

         12                 And, so, we, those of us who have any

         13  power, should be helping them do it.

         14                 And, so, this is what we would

         15  suggest to you, I could go, as I said, on and on,

         16  but let me just go to what we would suggest as an

         17  agenda for the City, separate and apart from what

         18  we're doing with the State.

         19                 First, HRA and ACS could, number one,

         20  send forms to both parents of providers, along with

         21  a clear letter or set of instructions; and if

         22  supporting documentation is required, help people

         23  with what the supporting documentation is that they

         24  need. Give examples, for example, of a qualified

         25  expense.
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          2                 Number two, ensure that both

          3  providers and parents are notified when the market

          4  rate is raised again.

          5                 Number three, establish, you've heard

          6  the providers say this a lot, you've heard me say

          7  this in other ways, establish a fair and effective

          8  dispute resolution process that cuts against these

          9  agency behemoth lines that ensure providers are paid

         10  in a timely manner, so that they do not give up on

         11  doing this valuable work.

         12                 Four, ensure that ACS and HRS

         13  materials are available, are comprehensible, and are

         14  translated into languages the providers speak.

         15                 Maybe we should ask fourth graders to

         16  be able to read HRA and ACS materials to see if they

         17  understand.

         18                 I would settle on eighth graders.

         19                 But number five, give workers at City

         20  agencies the tools, the time, the training, they

         21  need to serve families and providers well.

         22                 We have a lot more that we would like

         23  to see. We would like providers to get some kind of

         24  supplies. We would like to do other kinds of things.

         25  Just this Saturday we are running workshops, as we
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          2  have done for several other weekends as well, in

          3  professional development for providers, and tons of

          4  providers are coming at their own time to really

          5  learn more and more. Because the bottom line is

          6  this: High quality early childhood education is one

          7  of the fundamental building blocks for successful

          8  K-12 education. Michelle Bodin would tell you that

          9  every single day of the week. And we need you to

         10  help us push the City agencies to help us do this.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         13                 Thank you, Madam President.

         14                 Ms. Bodin, do you want to add

         15  anything?

         16                 MS. BODIN: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me just

         18  say, I think we have a very strong agreement, and

         19  President Weingarten, we had quite a series of

         20  exchanges with the Deputy Commissioner Diamond on --

         21                 MS. WEINGARTEN: I heard.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: -- The

         23  particular substances someone was smoking when they

         24  came up with this form. But there's no question in

         25  my mind that at minimum there is a negligence or a

                                                            138

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES COMMITTEES

          2  lack of concern that went into the construction of

          3  this approach. And I hope it's not something worse

          4  than that. I agree with you.

          5                 It's obvious if they want to create a

          6  user-friendly approach, and if they do, as we said

          7  when we framed this whole discussion in the

          8  beginning, if this is about the supply and the

          9  quality of child care, then it is dangerous to

         10  inhibit people's ability to get paid properly. It

         11  means people will stop providing child care and

         12  parents will not have a choice.

         13                 The great irony is, if you look at

         14  the title for Mr. Diamond, he is Deputy Commissioner

         15  for the Family Independence Administration, and what

         16  is a better way to get to family independence than

         17  for people to have the kind of safe, reliable child

         18  care that Ms. Santiago, the parent, spoke about a

         19  few minutes ago?

         20                 So, this is a great definition of

         21  catch-22 because we're saying we want family

         22  independence, we want to help people be economically

         23  self-sufficient, and everyone knows they need child

         24  care to do that, but we're going to make it as hard

         25  as possible for the providers to get the support
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          2  they need and the pay they need and the respect they

          3  need, and, therefore, when a bunch of providers can

          4  no longer provide the service, or can't provide it

          5  for as many children as we'd like, we're going to

          6  say, oh, too bad, we don't have as much child care

          7  we need, and therefore, a lot of families will never

          8  get to self-sufficiency.

          9                 So, we've got to keep challenging

         10  this Administration on everything from why they

         11  aren't listening to the voices of the people on the

         12  front line, the parents and the providers, why

         13  they've got this kind of contradiction running

         14  through their policies, why they're making it as

         15  hard as possible for people to do something which is

         16  really quite simple.

         17                 If they, as you said so clearly, if

         18  they want to get the money in the hands of the

         19  people, they should be sending out a letter, and I

         20  think this form that you guys have come up with is

         21  very straightforward. The first thing on the letter

         22  is, if you want money do this. You know, if you want

         23  to make sure your provider gets paid do this, and

         24  make it something that people would never throw away

         25  or ignore or fail to follow up on. And likewise,
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          2  that when you do call the other end of the line, the

          3  answer is how do we get to a positive resolution.

          4  Not how do we find there is a comma out of place,

          5  and how do we find a way to deny your request or

          6  string out your appeal; but how do we find a way to

          7  resolve the issue, because, in fact, that child care

          8  provider is providing a vital public service, and

          9  just like we are finally learning to support

         10  teachers, or cops, or firemen, it should be how do

         11  we find a way to support that child care provider

         12  every day.

         13                 I know my Co-Chair Helen Sears has a

         14  comment or a question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 And welcome.

         18                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: My comment is that

         20  you talked about the average of about 19,000 a year

         21  and 10,000 a year, and some of the providers have

         22  had to wait six months for reimbursement. I think

         23  what it says is that the object is to reduce and

         24  eliminate eventually child care. And when a woman is

         25  really, society is depending more and more on the
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          2  woman to help really stabilize their finances, or

          3  they're single parents, it is absolutely outrageous

          4  to think that the provider, who earning that kind of

          5  money, has cash flow that can wait six months for a

          6  reimbursement.

          7                 You do not need an Einstein formula

          8  to figure out what that is. It really is. And I

          9  think that doing what you're doing, and what the

         10  Council is doing is to really advocate so strongly

         11  so that the changes are made.  Because child care is

         12  so essential. I mean, I don't think we can stress

         13  enough, and the providers, if we didn't have them,

         14  there would be no child care, really and truly. So,

         15  I want to thank all of you for all that you do,

         16  because as a mother, I know how important that is,

         17  to have your children in very safe and reliable

         18  environment, and we're fortunate that we have the

         19  UFT that stands up for those things that are

         20  absolutely right. And I think we'll prevail. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         24  Chair Sears.

         25                 Well, this will conclude our hearing.
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          2  I want to thank everyone who has been in attendance

          3  today. I'm sorry we were not able to hear individual

          4  public testimony, but the Public Safety Committee of

          5  the Council is about to start a hearing in this very

          6  room, literally in minutes, so we have kind of run

          7  out of our time. But I want to thank everyone who is

          8  here. I want to particularly thank the UFT, and

          9  ACORN. This is one of the most important organizing

         10  efforts that you could be undertaking, and it's long

         11  overdue, and we thank you for the focus and energy

         12  you're putting into it, and particularly to you,

         13  President Weingarten.

         14                 This hearing of the General Welfare

         15  Committee and the Committee on Women's Issues is now

         16  adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:02 p.m.)
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